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Continued fo implement multi-brand strategy and leveraged on the different
positioning of various brands to fulfil the needs and preferences of varying
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An Extensive Network Capturing
Growing Opportunities in China

The Group's sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in
all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging, Tianjin,
Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network
enables the Group fo efficiently respond to custfomer needs and
deepen its market penetration in China.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 1,398 refail
outlets, comprising 1,177 concessionary counters and 221 retail
shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Financial Highlights
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement
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To All Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to present the audited annual results of Embry Holdings
Limited for the year ended 31 December 2020 on behalf of the Board
of Directors.

In 2020, the outbreak of novel coronavirus heavily hit global economies,
weighing on the operations of various indusries. Since the outbreak of the
COVID-19, China's government has implemented a series of anti-epidemic
measures and stimulus measures to support economic recovery. Starting from
the fourth quarter, China’s economy has returned to normal, reporting full-
year economic growth of 2.3%. While China’s economy has recovered
steadily, consumption sentiment has remained cautious and consumers have
maintained conservative stance on underwear spending, puffing pressure on

the operation of the overall underwear industry.

phase completion of
sales network adjustment
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Mr. Cheng Man Tai
Chairman of the Group
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The implementation of epidemic control measures affected the operations
of production lines, logistics and retail outlets. The Group responded
prudently to the challenging operating environment. Since the beginning of
the year, the Group has adopted cost control measures and implemented
flexible production planning. By concentrating production capacity on
products with relatively stable demand, including everyday wear and
comfortable loungewear, the Group could flexibly deploy its resources 1o
meet the product orders and swiftly adjust its operation according fo the
market conditions.

As a well-known underwear brand in China, the Group has actively
assumed social responsibilities and supported the country and society in the
nationwide epidemic prevention and control campaign. During the vear, the
Group donated RMB1 million worth of thermal underwear in support of
Wouhan medical stoff. In addition, the Group deeply cares about its staff and
has established an epidemic prevention fund to support the staff in urgent
need due fo the epidemic.
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement

With increasingly diversified domestic consumption patterns and sales
channels, particularly the explosive growth of the online shopping market
during the year, indusTry competition has intensified. In view of the
increasingly pronounced segmentation of market, Embry has strived to meet
the needs of the market and consumers. leveraging years of experience in
the lingerie industry and understanding of consumer preferences, the Group
confinues fo optimise production technology and product design and devise
sales strategies. Benefiting from self-production and self-marketing
advantages, the Group can flexibly deploy resources to effectively respond

to the market changes.

While the retail market for underwear remained sluggish, the Group
continued fo reinforce ifts brand influence and market share by fulfilling the
varying customer needs and preferences through the respective positioning
of its brands. Under the multi-brand strategy, the Group operates seven
brands, including the flagship brand EMBRY FORM as well as FANDECIE,
functional brand COMFIT, online brand E-BRA, men's underwear brand IVU,
offline wholesale brand JADORE and luxury brand LIZA CHENG.

To stay abreast of changing consumption habits in the Mainland market, the
Group continued fo grasp the characterisfics of the online shopping market
and designed exclusive products to optimise its omni-channel coverage.
During the year, online sales confinued to grow steadily with revenue up
18.91% yearonyear. Over the past several years, to align with the changes
in regional market and consumption sentiment, the Group has completed its
nationwide sales network optimisation to enhance sales efficiency. At the
beginning of 2020, the outbreak of coronavirus led to temporary suspension
of operations of various sfores of the Group in the Mainland, prompting the
Group to conduct a thorough evaluation on the efficiency of ifs retail outlets
throughout China and reinforce efforts to adjust its sales network. During the
year, the number of refail outlets of the Group net decreased by 266 and
maintained 1,398 retail outlets with higher sales efficiency, with sales
network spanning across over 380 cities in China, marking the phased

completion of sales network adjustment.

During the year under review, the Group's furnover was HK$ 1,650,483,000,
dropped by 27.19% as compared with the previous year. Gross profit was
approximately HK$1,182,487,000 with a gross profit margin at 7 1.64%.
Loss attributable fo owners of the Company was HK$2,824,000. Negative
profit margin was 0.17%.

To thank our shareholders for their long-ferm support, the Board recommends

the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per share.
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Chairman’s Statement

Llooking ahead to 2021, despite China’s continual economic growth, the
recurrent global epidemic and external economic uncertainties will continue
to dampen investor and consumer confidence. Retail market sentiment,
especially for underwear, is likely to remain cautious. The depressed market
condifion will linger for a while and the operating environment for underwear
indusfry in China will stay challenging.

In face of the complicated and everchanging market environment, refail
enterprises should stay vigilant to the market changes and make flexible
responses. The Group will consolidate ifs strength and adhere to multi-brand
strategy while timely deploying resources of various brands according to
consumers’ demands to enhance sales efficiency. Meanwhile, the Group
will monitor the development of the overall market and continue to implement
independent research and development in order o provide consumers with
quality products that suit their needs, thereby strengthening the
competitiveness of the Group's various brands. In terms of sales network
optfimisation, the Group achieved phased completion of adjusting
nationwide sales network in 2020. In the future, the Group will closely
monitor market frends, seize opportunities arising from changes in
consumption needs, rigorously supervise sales efficiency of all refail outlets
and make timely and appropriate adjustments. Also, the Group will continue
to integrate its online and offline omni-channel coverage in sales distribution
and consolidate its brand image and market share.

Enhancing operational efficiency remains the Group's longterm goal. The
Group will continue to optimise supply chain and prudently plan its
production capacity in order fo strike a balance between inventory level and
efficiency maximisation of production, logistics and sales systems. In addition
to the first and second phases of intelligent warehouses at the production
base in Jinan, Shandong province which have been in operation, the
intelligent material warehouse at the production base in Jinan has also
commenced operation during the year, thus improving productivity and
enhancing efficiency of the supply chain. The second phase of plant
premises and ancillary facilities at the production base in Changzhou,
Jiangsu province was also completed, catering to the Group's future
development needs.

| would like to take this opportunity fo thank the Board of Directors and all
our employees for their contribution and efforts made during the year filled
with challenges. | hope that all of us will keep going hand in hand in future.
| would also like to express my gratitude to our shareholders and business
partners for their trust and support. As a token of our appreciation, Embry
will make our best endeavours fo create greater values for our shareholders,
cusfomers, employees and business pariners. Together we step forward to a
brighter future.

Cheng Man Tai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business and Operations Review

In 2020, global economy and market confidence were hard hit by
the widespread coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic around the world.
Facing the challenges posed by the pandemic, the Chinese
government has provided important support fo the economic recovery
through effective anti-pandemic measures and economic recovery
initiatives. China’s economy began to recover in the second quarter of
the year with gross domestic product (GDP) of RMB101,598.6 billion
in 2020, representing an increase of 2.3% as compared fo the
previous year, becoming the only major global economy to achieve

positive economic growth.

Despite China's overall economic recovery, consumers remained
cautious on the consumption against the backdrop of prolonged
widespread COVID-19 pandemic and the associated risk of localised
outbreak coupled with the lingering geopolitical uncertainties. In the
second half of 2020, the yearonyear growth of tofal domestic retail
sales of consumer goods turned positive, but there were signs of a
slowdown in growth. Consumers also became more price-sensitive
and pursued products with high price-performance value, hindering
the overall growth of underwear industry in China. Thanks to the
Group's flexible capacity planning proposed at the beginning of the

year, the Group concentrated its production capacity on relatively

stable demand, including everyday wear and comfortable
loungewear, and deployed its resources according to order
requirements, thus effectively controlling inventory level throughout the

year.
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Current Year”), the Group’s
revenue decreased by 27.19% over that of the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Prior Year”) to HK$1,650,483,000. Gross profit margin
decreased by 6.12 percentage points to 71.64%. In response to the
challenging retail environment, the Group implemented various cost control
measures during the year and recorded a slight decrease in selling and
distribution expenses and administrative expenses. During the Current Year,
loss attributable 1o owners of the Company narrowed to HK$2,824,000 as
compared to the six months ended 30 June 2020 (the “First Half"). This
includes the overall compensation for loss of office to employees and
impairment of right-of-use assets amounted to HK$77,154,000 in
aggregate. losses per share was HKO.67 cents (2019: eamings per share
of HK19.01 cents).

The Board of Directors of the Company resolved to declare a final dividend
of HK2.5 cents per share (2019: HK3.0 cents) for the Current Year.

Brand management

In 2020, the Group continued to implement its multi-brand strategy to
operate seven brands, namely EMBRY FORM, FANDECIE, COMFIT, E-BRA,
IVU, IADORE and LIZA CHENG, and continued fo consolidate its two
flagship brands which contributed the majority of sales (i.e. EMBRY FORM
and FANDECIE) through fimely adjustment of brand marketing arrangements
in line with changes in the market environment. Despite the weak
consumption sentiment of underwear retail market, the Group continues to
maintain its brand influence and market share by leveraging its various
brands with different positioning to fulfil the needs and preferences of varying

cusfomer groups.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of brand promotion, in response to the coronavirus pandemic, the
Group fimely adjusted its brand marketing arrangements during the Current
Year and suspended the physical marketing and promotional activities. Not
only did it serve the purpose of reducing transmission risk, but it also saved
the related expenses. The Group conducted limited marketing after
pandemic receded in the second half of the year to mitigate the impact of
COVID-19 on sales throughout the year.

In terms of brand \oyouf, the Group continued to copiTohse on its mUHip|e
brands to tap info the online and offline retailing market. E-BRA is an online
brand, focusing on the online market; whereas JADORE serves as an offline
wholesale brand, targeting third- and fourth-ier cities. During the pandemic,
the online sales of its online brands and their exclusive products slightly
mitigated the impact of the decline in the customer flow to our refail sfores.
Proper sales and promotion factics also drove traffic to the online platforms.
Although the domestic market demand for non-essential underwear products
remained relatively low, online sales recorded an increase of approximately
18.91% in 2020.

Sales network

In 2020, the Group continued to opfimise its omni-channel coverage with
adjustment fo the distribution of refail outlets in line with changes in regional
markefs and consumer sentiment, and operated corresponding brands in
appropriate regional markets and closed stores with lower efficiency to
enhance the overall operational efficiency of the sales network. As of 31
December 2020, the Group had 1,398 refail outlets in total, including
1,177 concessionary counters and 221 retail sfores. During the Current
Year, the Group was forced fo suspend its store operations due to the
COVID-19 outbreak. However, it allowed the Group fo conduct a defailed
evaluation of the effectiveness of sales points throughout the country. The
Group focused on the restructuring of the sales network in the second and
third quarter, resulting in a net decrease of 266 retail outlets compared to
the end of December last year and the completion of phased sales network

adjustment.

Meanwhile, with a view to catering to the changes in domestic consumption
habits, the Group continued to focus on the uniqueness of the online market
and increased its brand’s presence in the online market by designing
specialised products, so as fo aftract more potential customers and expand
its online and offline network coverage with the aim of striking balance
between both.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Product design, research and development

The Group has always adhered fo excellent product quality and continued
fo devote resources fo product research and development, and strived to
opfimise and improve the appearance, functionality and production
technology of the products in order fo provide superiorquality products fo the
customers. With a solid foundation of in-house research and development
capabilities and a strong commitment to quality, the Group focused its
research and development efforts on upgrading production technology
during the year, sfriving fo improve produdion efﬁciency and enhance the
operational efficiency of its supply chain in order to maintain its leading

position in the highly competitive market.

During the Current Year, the Group launched a full range of popular new
collections, including: EMBRY FORM’s "Elegant Posture Support Series” (T4
ZRERLART!)); FANDECIE’s "lightweight Cup Series (T8 &M £711)" and
"Curious Cat Series (I #f 27 J % 5 1)"; E-BRA’s "Perfect Body Shaping
Series (TE&RERZ751)"; COMFIT’s "(Refreshing and Beautiful Physique
Series B EEE 5 511)"; IADORE’s "Flowery luna Series (TTE& 2 A &
Hl1)" and LIZA CHENG's "Ripple Series | VERZ 51"

In 2020, the Group obtained @ new patents, including 4 utility model patent
and 5 appearance design patents. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
has 11 invention patents, 54 utility model patents and 18 appearance

design patents.

Production capacity

Under the influence of COVID-19 pandemic and the external economies,
consumers remained cautious on the consumption of underwear products
and inclined to purchase discounted items. Leveraging on its self-production
and self-marketing advantages, the Group actively respond to the rapid
market changes by promptly deploying manpower and machine production
capacity. To cope with the changing consumer demand, the Group
reviewed ifs operation process and inventory levels at the beginning of the
year and adjusted its production capacity in line with consumer demand in
order to reduce unnecessary logisfics costs and mainfain cash flow, which

effectively kept inventory at a manageable level throughout the year.

The Group's first and second phases of intelligent warehouse at the
production base in Jinan, Shandong province commenced operation in
2018 and 2019, respectively, in order to improve the efficiency of product
delivery and logistics. In addition, the infelligent material warehouse of the
Jinan production base officially commenced operation during the vear,
which helped improve production efficiency and supply chain efficiency of

the Group.
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Human resources

Employees are one of the comerstones of the Group's operations.
On the one hand, the Group frained its employees and improved
their welfare, reviewed the infemal management culture from fime
to time and enhanced the sense of belonging of employees. On
the other hand, the Group improved production technology
together with the utilisation of automated logistics system,
improved the workflow of employees and raised production
efficiency, so as to mitigate the overall cost increase pressure and
improve operational efficiency. During the year, the Group
implemented an array of cost control measures, and streamlined
its organizational structure and made reasonable shift

arrangement in order to lower staff cost.

On 30 December 2020, the Company granted a total of
20,000,000 share options to subscribe for 20,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company to 145
granfees in aggregate, with the objective to provide incentive or
reward to management and staff so as to encourage them to

make continuing effort and contribution to the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the number of employees of the
Group was approximately 5,455 (2019: approximately 7,362).
Total staff costs [including wages and basic salaries,

commissions, bonuses, contributions to the retirement benefits

scheme and excluding directors’ and chief executive's
remunerations) for the Current Year was HK$474,759,000,
decreasing by 33.38% yearonyear (2019: HK$712,616,000).

ANER

ETIAXBEEREFNESELZ — EE—HTEBIEIERZETEN » TR AEEXL  ReETHNRER ; 5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

Revenue

During the Current Year, revenue was HK$ 1,650,483,000, representing a
decrease of 27.19% from the Prior Year, mainly atiributable to the fact that
weak consumption senfiment in China resuHing from the impact of the
pandemic on the global economic environment and domestic consumers'’

cautious demand for underwear.

During the Current Year, revenue from refail sales was HK$1,203,246,000,
accounting for 72.90% of the Group's tofal revenue and representing a
decrease of 34.84% from the Prior Year. With the gradual economy
recovery in China, the decline in refail sales narrowed in the second half of
the year as compared fo that in the First Half. As a result of the pandemic,
some consumers shifted to online shopping, and the Group continued to
record growth in sales on its ecommerce platform. Revenue from the Internet
business increased by 18.91% to HK$382,898,000, accounting for
23.20% of the total revenue.

The Mainland China market is the main source of income for the Group.
During the Current Year, revenue from the Mainland China market was
HK$1,595,581,000 accounting for 96.67% of the Group's total revenue.

Among the seven brands operated by the Group, EMBRY FORM and
FANDECIE are the main sources of income for the Group and their
contributions to the total revenue amounted to 46.33% and 22.73%
respectively. EMBRY FORM's revenue amounted to HK$764,648,000,
which decreased by 25.92% from the Prior Year. FANDECIE's revenue
amounted to HK$375,081,000, which decreased by 32.89% from the
Prior Year. The changes in the two brands were similar fo that of the overall
sales. The decline was mainly due to the impact of the pandemic on the
retail markets and the fact that consumers remain cautious on the
consumption of underwear resulting from uncertainties in the global
macroeconomic environment. The other brands E-BRA, COMFIT, IVU,
IADORE and LIZA CHENG's revenue for the Current Year amounted to
HK$498,872,000, accounting for 30.22% of the overall revenue.

L R7YISYA D]

6
AEEEEEA 1,650,483 00085 > B F—E%
RTIE27.10% » T BER R OHRHSEEEY
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BH % 498,872,000 7T » LW AR 30.22% °



Management Discussion and Analysis

Lingerie continues to be the core product line of the Group. During the
Current Year, sales of lingerie decreased by 2/7.58% over the Prior Year fo
HK$1,435,914,000, accounting for 87.0% of Group's revenue. Sales of
sleepwear was HK$ 156,989,000, accounting for 9.51% of the total
revenue of the Group, while sales of swimwear was HK$38,836,000,

accounting for 2.35% of the Group's revenue.

Gross Profit

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of approximately
HK$1,182,487,000, representing a decrease of 32.92% from the Prior
Year. Gross profit margin decreased by 6.12 percentage points over the
Prior Year to 71.64%. It was mainly due fo the fact that more shopping
festivals were held by refail market as a whole during the year in order to
promote the consumption sentiment and offered a number of discounts, thus
the Group also appropriately followed the market 1o align with the overall

strategy of respective channel and maintain its market share.

Other income and gains

Other income increased by 54.43% to HK$71,485,000 for the Current
Year [2019: HK$46,289,000), mainly due to exchange gain of
HK$ 11,536,000 resulted from the appreciation of Renminbi. Besides, other
gains and expenses were mainly subsidies received by the Group from the
local municipal government of approximately HK$37,448,000 and rental
income of approximately HK$ 16,896,000.

Operating expenses

During the Current Year, selling and distribution expenses decreased by
32.19% to HK$958,518,000 (2019: HK$1,413,639,000), accounting
for 58.07% (2019: 62.36%) of the Group's revenue. In response to the
pandemic, the Group implemented an array of cost confrol measures,
including acfive control on renovation expenses and other expenses such as
advertising, resulting in a decrease in the proportion of selling and

distribution expenses to overall sales.

Administrative expenses decreased by 26.97% over the Prior Year to
HK$172,840,000, accounting for 10.47% (2019: 10.44%) of the

Group's revenue.

THRREBEEAEENZOEREG -REAFE N
Y E A 1,435,914,00058 7 » 8 E—EERTE
27.58% 1 7 % B UK 287.0% > BE % 35 & A
156,989,000 75 » 1A £ MUK 9. 51% o kK8
7% 38,836,00087T » (hAEE U 2.35% ©
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Impairment of right-of-use assets and other expenses

During the Current Year, impairment of rightof-use assefs and
other expenses (the “Non-Operating Expense”] amounted to
HK$82,459,000, mainly due to a provision for impairment of
right-of-use assets of retail stores of approximately
HK$47,608,000 as a result of the weak sales performance of
the Group's refail stores due fo the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, and a one-off charge of approximately
HK$29,546,000 was incurred from the organisation structure

rationalisation.

Loss

Loss attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$2,824,000 for the Current Year, while profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the Prior Year was
HK$80,322,000. loss was mainly due to the decrease in
operating income under the impact of the pandemic, combined
with one-off expenses such as compensation for loss of office
resulting from the organisation structure rationalisation and
impairment of right-of-use assets, but the loss gradually
narrowed in the second half of the year thanks to the Group's
effective cost control measures. After excluding the Non-
Operating Expense, the profit attributable to equity holders for
the period decreased of 7.67% to HK$79,635,000 from
HK$86,246,000 as compared to last year.

EREEEREREMRAR

RAEE > BRAREEREREMBIS (FHEEML)) 482,450,000 TEERFCOVD19ZERE - SREMNTE
ESERIES MBS EENERREERMEREN47,008,000587T » MURE S BB BRBTELM 29,546,000 87—
REEHM o
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BEERRAEERSUNR » THEBREDWE - MIFIHEERX  2ABHAE ABEERIEHN 79,635 00087 » &
EF#986,246,000 BITHL 7.67% ©
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group finances its operations mainly with internally generated cash
flows. Financial position of the Group remained sound and healthy during
the Current Year. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$425,149,000 (2019
HK$200,230,000). As of 31 December 2020, the Group's interest-
bearing bank borrowings amounted to HK$464, 416,000 (2019
HK$558,180,000). As at 31 December 2020, equity atfributable to
owners of the Company was HK$2,488,389,000 (2019
HK$2,349,275,000). The gearing ratio of the Group was approximately
18.66% [2019: 23.76%).

Capital expenditure

During the Current Year, the capital expenditure of the Group amounted to
HK$36,986,000 (2019: HK$114,696,000), which was mainly used for
construction of infelligent material warehouse at the production base in Jinan.
As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitments of the Group amounted
to HK$117,213,000 (2019: HK$139,150,000), which were contracted

but not provided for in the financial stafements.

Charge on the Group's assets

During the Current Year, the Group pledged Hong Kong investment
propertfies, buildings and right-of-use assefs with net book values of
HK$86,000,000, HK$2,714,000 and HK$12,685,000 respectively to

banks to finance loans.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2020, the tofal issued share capital of the Company
was HK$4,224,000 (2019: HK$4,224,000), comprising 422,417,000
[2019: 422,417,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

MBEERMBEER
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Significant investment held, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies

During the Current Year, the Group was neither involved in any significant
investment, nor any material acquisitions or disposals of any subsidiaries or

associated companies.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group carries out ifs transactions mainly in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments fo protect
against the volatility associated with foreign currency fransactions and other

financial assefs and liabilities created in the ordinary course of the business.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, bank guarantees given in lieu of the Group's
property rental deposits and utility deposits amounted to HK$751,000
[2019: HK$816,000). Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other
significant contingent liabilities, nor any litigation or arbitration of material

importance.

Prospect

Llooking ahead to 2021
challenging due to the increasing complexity of geopolitical and related

, the global economic outlook is expected to remain

uncertainties, as well as the fluctuating global COVID-19 pandemic situation.
In addition to the speed of widespread vaccination, the pace of the global
economic recovery would hinge on various factors. Although the domestic
economy improved markedly in the second quarter of 2020 with a gradual
pick-up in consumption, external economic uncertainties have continued fo
weigh on investment market sentiment, and some consumption markets still
remain under pressure, slowing the pace of recovery in non-essential

consumer sectors SUCh as Underweor.

leveraging on years of experience and brand strength accumulated in the
lingerie industry in China as well as flexibility, the Group will continue to
review and adjust its business sfrategy in a timely manner. As consumers are
still conservative towards underwear products, the Group will adopt a
prudent approach and closely monitor market trends in order to make
appropriate decisions in terms of product design, production technology,
marketing and sales channels according to consumer needs and

preferences.
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Going forward, the Group expects that it will still take some time for the
market to fully recover. In a complex and challenging operating environment,
the Group is committed to fortifying its strengths, maintaining its
competitiveness and tackling challenges in a pragmatic and determined
manner. In the coming year, the Group will continue fo implement its multi-
brand strategy and adjust the multi-brand product mix in stores and develop
relevant products in a timely manner based on consumer and market
demand-centric sales strategies so as to attfract more potential customers of
varying age groups and purchasing power, and further increase the brand’s

share in the domestic market.

With the changing consumption environment and consumption demand, the
Group will keep abreast of the times and strive fo meet market and consumer
demand in order to maintain its competitiveness in the lingerie industry in
China. Regarding production capacity, the Group will continue to leverage
on the advantages of its self-production and selfmarketing model and the
newly established intelligent material warehouse to enhance production
efficiency and delivery efficiency, and actively optimise its supply chain to

respond more precisely to market demands.

Adhering fo the commitment to quality, the Group will continue to adopt a
flexible and effective multi-brand strategy fo respond to the everchanging
market and sfrive fo create longterm value for shareholders through prudent

and effective allocation of resources.
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According to the national refail consumption survey results released by China General Chamber of Commerce and the China
National Commercial Information Centre in 2020, EMBRY FORM lingerie ranked top three in 2019 in terms of composite
market share in similar products in the industry, and ranked first in 2019 in terms of composite market share with
respect to group sales in similar products in the industry

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded cerfificates of Exemplary Enterprise of Integrity in Product and Service
Quality by the China Association for Quality Inspection

Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was named by the Knitwear Branch of National Technical Committee on Textile Standardization and
the Sportswear Branch of National Technical Committee on Sports Goods Standardization in China as a Leading Entity in 2020
Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. was granted the 2019 Overall Contribution Award by the People’s Government of
Xuejia Town

Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was named by the Jinan Municipal Committee of the Communist Party of China and
People’s Government of Jinan City as a Leading Enterprise in Real Economy in Jinan City

Embry (Shanghai) Company Limited was accredited as the Top 100 Garment Enterprises in China (2019) by the China
National Garment Association

EMBRY FORM was granted the Annual Brand Equity Award and Annual Charity Award of China’s Underwear Industry
(2019-2020) at the 2020 China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

EMBRY FORM received the Hong Kong Top Brand (2007-2020) award from the Hong Kong Brand Development Council and
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

EMBRY FORM was awarded the Quality Tourism Services Scheme Certification Mark by the Hong Kong Tourism Board

Embry (H.K.) Limited was accredited by The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority as a Good MPF Employer
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Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Man Tai, aged 91, is the Chairman and founder of the Group,
and an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Cheng had been a
consultant of the Company from March 2014 to August 2018 prior to his
re-appointment as an Execufive Director of the Company in August 2018.
Mr. Cheng is in charge of the Group's corporate strategy. He has over 45
years of experience in the lingerie industry. Mr. Cheng graduated from
Beijing Agricultural Engineering University (now known as China Agricultural
University) with a Bachelor's degree. He is an Honorary Professor of China
Agricultural University. Mr. Cheng obtained the World Outstanding Chinese
Award and Honorary Docforate of Business Management from Armstrong
University in July 2006. He was awarded Honorary Fellowship and
admitted as Honorary Professor by Canadian Chartered Institute of Business
Administration and Llincoln University respectively in September 2009. He
was also awarded Senior Fellowship by the Asian College of Knowledge
Management in January 2013. Mr. Cheng is also a shareholder and
director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), the spouse of Madam Ngok Ming Chu (an Executive Director of
the Company) and the father of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza (an Executive
Director of the Company) and Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen [an Executive
Director of the Company).

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, aged 84, is an Executive Director and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Ngok served as Chairman
of the Group from March 2014 to August 2018. Madam Ngok is in
charge of the Group's business planning. She joined the Group in 1980
and has over 40 years of experience in the lingerie industry. Madam Ngok
graduated from and is currently an Honorary Professor of Beijing Agricultural
Engineering University [now known as China Agricultural University). She is
also a shareholder and director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (the
Chairman of the Group), the mother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza an Executive
Director of the Company) and the step-mother of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen

(an Executive Director of the Company).
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Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, an Executive Director and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Cheng is responsible
for the day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group. Ms. Cheng
joined the Group in 1993 and has over 28 vears of experience in the
lingerie industry. She obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Southern California and a Master of
Business Administration (Execufive) degree from the City University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Cheng was awarded the prize for Young Industrialist in Hong
Kong in 1999 and was appointed as Vice Chairman of Shanghai Garment
Trade Association in 2008. She obtained the World Outstanding Chinese
Award and Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration from Infernational
American University in March 2009, and was awarded Fellowship and
admitted as Visiting Professor by Canadian Chartered Insfitute of Business
Administration and Lincoln University respectively in September 2009.
Furthermore, Ms. Cheng was elected as the first President of Shenzhen
Underwear Association in August 2012. She is currently a member of the
Yangpu Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference
in Shanghai, @ member of the China National Textile and Apparel Council,
a Vice Chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association, a specially invited
Vice President of the China Association for Quality Inspection and a Vice
Chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited. Ms.
Cheng is also a director of Harmonious World Limited (a substantial
shareholder of the Company), the daughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (the
Chairman of the Group] and Madam Ngok Ming Chu [an Executive
Direcfor of the Company), and the younger sister of Mr. Cheng Chuen

Chuen (an Executive Director of the Company).
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Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, aged 71, is an Executive Director of the
Company and currently the Assistant General Manager (Research and
Development) of Embry (China] Garments ltd. He first joined the Group in
May 2005 and has rejoined the Group since April 2017. He is also a
director of Changzhou Duosiwei Fumiture Decoration Construction Co., Lid.
He is in charge of the research and development centre of the Group and is
responsible for innovations of technologies, processes and equipment for the
production of products. Mr. Cheng has over 24 years of experience in
technological research and development in the manufacturing of display
fumiture, display dummies and also garment processing. Mr. Cheng is the
son of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (the Chairman of the Group), the step-son of
Madam Ngok Ming Chu (an Executive Director of the Company) and an
elder brother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza (an Executive Director of the
Company).

Ms. Lu Qun, aged 67, is an Executive Director of the Company and
currently the Assistant General Manager (Strategic Management] of Embry
(China) Garments ltd. and the General Manager of Embry (Shandong]
Garments Limited. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Lu is responsible for the functions of strategic management,
project management and marketing management in Mainland China. She
joined the Group in April 2003 and has over 41 years of experience in
management and administration. Ms. Lu obtained o Master's degree in
Business Administration from Beihang University (previously known as Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics), the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC"), in 2001. She has also obtained an undergraduate diploma in
international trade from the University of International Business and
Economics, the PRC, in 1992. Ms. Lu complefed a senior managers’ human
resources management training course held by Tsinghua University, the PRC,
in 2006. She has obtained the International Project Management
Professional Certification since 2002.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Siu Ki, alias, Kevin Lau, aged 62, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
both the Remuneration Commitiee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Lau is currently running his own management consultancy
firm, Hin Yan Consultants Llimited. Mr. Lau has previously worked atf an
international accounting firm for over 15 years. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in . Mr. lau is a fellow member of both the Association of
Chartered Cerhﬁed Accountants ("ACCA") and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He was a member of the worldwide Council of
ACCA from May 2002 to September 2011

company secretary of Yeebo (International Holdings) Limited, Hung Fook

. Mr. lau is currently the

Tong Group Holdings Limited and Expert Systems Holdings Limited, and an
independent non-executive director of Binhai Investment Company Limited,
Comba Telecom Systems Holdings Limited, FIH Mobile Limited, Samson
Holding Ltd., TCL Electronics Holdings Limited and IVD Medical Holding
Limited, the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”). He had been an independent non-executive
director of China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation on ¢ December
2018. Mr. Lau joined the Company in November 2006.
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Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, dlias, Eddie Lee, aged 55, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of both the Audit Commitiee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. lee is a consultant of Howse Williams. He received his LL.B
(Honours| degree and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of
Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively. He was then admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in England and Wales in 1997, Mr.
lee is currently an independent non-executive director of NetDragon
Websoft Holdings Limited, Newton Resources ltd, Tenfu [Cayman) Holdings
Company Llimited, China BlueChemical lid., Red Star Macalline Group
Corporation ltd., Glory Sun Financial Group Limited, FSE Services Group
Limited and Ten Pao Group Holdings Limited, the shares of these companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange. He had been an independent non-
executive director of Asia Cassava Resources Holdings Limited and Landsea
Green Properties Co., lid., the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, until his resignation on 13 May 2018 and 19 June 2020
respectively. Mr. lee joined the Company in November 20006.

Prof. Lee T. S., dlias, Lee Tien-sheng, aged 72, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Prof. lee is currently the Professor Emeritus of the Department of
Supply Chain and Information Management of Hang Seng University of
Hong Kong (formerly known as Hang Seng Management College). He was
the Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration of The Chinese University
of Hong Kong from 2002 to 2008, Vice-President (Academic & Research)
of Hang Seng Management College from 2009 to 2014, the Head and
Professor of the Department of Supply Chain and Information Management
of Hang Seng Management College from 2009 to 2015 and a Chair
Professor of Feng Chia University, Taiwan from December 2015 to January
2019. Prof. lee obtained his PhD in Business Administration and Master's
degree in Business Administration from the University of Missouri-Columbia,
the United States in 1982 and 1978 respectively. He also holds a Master's
degree in Management Science and a Bachelor's degree in Electronic
Engineering from the National Chiao Tung University of Taiwan. Prof. lee's
research and teaching interests include supply chain management, quality
management and business process reengineering. He has published his
research in many academic journals. Prof. lee had been an independent
non-executive director of GET Ho|dings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation on 28 December 2018.
Prof. Lee joined the Company in November 2006.
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Senior Management

Ms. Law Yuk Ying, aged 41, is the Group Financial Controller. Ms. Law is
responsible for the supervision and management of the Group's overall
financial matters and investor relations. She joined the Group in 2008 as
the Group Accounting Manager and was appointed to the present position
in 2019. Ms. low obtained a Bachelor's degree in Accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Law has over 18 years of experience in auditing, financial

accounting, corporate investment and financing, as well as management.

Ms. Chan Hei, aged 47, is the Group Internal Audit Director and is in
charge of the infernal audit functions of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the
Group in 2016 and has over 21 years of experience in external audit,
financial analysis and infernal audit. She obtained a Bachelor's degree in
Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
Master's degree in Business Administration from The City University, London
[now known as City, University of Llondon). Ms. Chan is a member of the
American Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant conferred by the Board of Public Accountants, the State of

Montana, the USA.
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The Board and the management of the Company are committed fo the
maintenance of good corporate governance practices and procedures. The
Company believes that good corporate governance provides a framework
that is essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,

sustainable business growth and enhancing shareholders' value.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code") as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Goveming the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance

practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all code
provisions under the CG Code so far as they are applicable and a majority
of the recommended best practices under the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020 (the “Review Period”).

Governance Structure
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Board of Directors
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and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)
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(3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)
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Directors
Board Composition

The Directors place great emphasis on the fiduciary nature of the Board's
responsibilities and strive to be accountable fo the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

A board diversity policy has been formulated by the Board sefting out the
approach to maintaining a Board with a diversity of directors. The Company
recognises the benéfits of diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting its sustainable development. All Board appointments will
confinue fo be based on meritocracy with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on

merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Direcfors, namely Mr. Cheng
Man Tai (Chairman), Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Lliza [Chief Executive Officer),
Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun; and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. lee
Kwan Hung and Prof. lee T. S. The number of Independent Non-Executive
Direcfors represents more than one-third of the Board. The biographical
details of and relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed
under the section headed "Directors and Senior Management” on pages 26

to 31 of this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business development of the Group and for effective leadership as all the
Executive Directors possess extensive experience in management and the
research and development, design, production and marketing of lingerie
products while the three Independent Non-Executive Directors possess
professional knowledge and broad experience in finance, law and
management respectively. The Directors are of the opinion that the present
structure of the Board can ensure the independence and objectivity of the
Board and provide a system of checks and balances to safeguard the

interests of the shareholders and the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Article 108(A) of the arficles of association of the Company provides that
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall
refire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
refirement af least once every three years at the Company’s annual general
meeting and shall be eligible for re-election. Under Article 105, the office of
a Director of the Company s liable to be vacated in certain circumstances
and the Company may remove any Director of the Company by an ordinary

resolution at o general meeting as prescribed in Arficle 114.

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directfors for re-election
at annual general meetings are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
puf to the Board for decision. New Directors appointed by the Board are
subject fo re-election by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting pursuant to the articles of association of the Company. In
considering the appointment of new Directors, the Nomination Committee
will assess the candidate according to the criteria sef out in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. In the case of a candidate for an Independent
Non-Executive Director, he/she should also meet the independence criferia

sef ouf in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Executive Directors

The Executive Directors, Mr. Cheng Man Tai, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza,
Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun, have
each entered into a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of
two years. Each Executive Director is enfifled o a discrefionary management
bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the bonuses payable to all the
Executive Directors for any financial year of the Company shall not exceed
8% of the audited consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and
non-controlling interests and payment of such bonuses| for that financial year
of the Company. An Executive Director shall not vote on any resolution of the
Direcfors regarding the amount of the management bonus payable o him/

her.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was appointed for a term
of two years with a formal lefter of appointment setting out the key terms and

condifions of his appointment.

Save for the directors’ fees and the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme (as defined on page 59 of this annual report) to each of
them, none of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is expected fo
receive any other remuneration for holding his office as an Independent

Non-Executive Director.

The Company annually assesses the independence of each Independent
Non-Executive Director during his term of appointment. In February 2021,
the Company received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Direcfors a written confirmation of his independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations, the Company considers all

the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

The Board considers that all meetings should be legally and properly
convened. The Chairman of the Board fakes the lead to ensure that Board
meetings and Board committee meefings are convened in accordance with
the requirements set out in the articles of association of the Company, the

terms of reference of the respective Board committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for drawing up
and approving the agenda for each meeting after consultation with all the
Directors and the Company Secretfary. Prior notice of each regular Board
meeting is given to all the Directors at least 14 days in advance and the
Directfors are invited fo include matters for discussion in the agenda. Agenda
and accompanying Board papers are sent to all the Directors at least 3 days

[or such other period as agreed) prior fo meetings.

Board meetings are held af least four times a year. In addition, special
Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the
active participation, either in person or through other electronic means of

communication, of all the Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to provide
sufficient nofice to give all the Directors an opportunity to attend. For specio|

Board meetings, reasonable nofice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary fo ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and

regulations are followed.
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The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board, including all concerns raised by the Directors and
dissenting views expressed. The minutes of all Board meetings and Board

committee meefings are available for inspection by any Director, auditor or

any relevant eligible parties who can have access fo such minutes.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The record of attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings,

Board committee meetings and annual general meeting held during 2020 is

sef out in the following table:

LEEEHTHK -

EFNHELHE
TERHIISEEN T T

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

EFEENEECBRERNCHREFEMEEEEN
HE HROERESRENAMAMIZSERER
NRHER - HAEE  ZEMNERASERNEE
BBV EBAIEUSHMEEFETRNES

FRETHEFETH
EXZE0 R KRRBFAGNHELR

TRHERYBTRY
Annudl
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Bz Bxg BRZEY RRZEY FMESE RRBFAE
Executive Directors WITEE
Cheng Man Tai (Chairman) — B883R (Z/Z) 5/5  N/ARER  N/ATEBAR  N/ATER 1/1
Cheng Pik Ho liza 1B 5/5 N/ATRBH 2/2 2/2 1/1
(Chief Executive Officer] (fTB4EEE)
Ngok Ming Chu A% 5/5 N/ATERA N/ATERA N/ATERA 1/1
Cheng Chuen Chuen BER 5/5 N/ATER N/ATERA N/ATERA 1/1
Lu Qun ¥ 5/5 N/ATRER N/ATRER N/ATRER 1/1
Independent Non-Executive  JGIIIEITES
Directors
Lau Siu Ki 2147 5/5 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
lee Kwan Hung i3 5/5 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
lee T. S. X4 5/5 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
Average Attendance Rate TigHEE 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

In addition, the Chairman met once with the Independent Non-Executive

Directors without the presence of other Directors.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy with an aim to indemnify
its Directors and senior executives from any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities and expenses arising from, including but not limited to, any
proceedings brought against them during the performance of their duties
pursuant fo their respective service agreements entered info with the

Company.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers [“Model Code”) (with certain modifications but on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code)
as sef out in Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules as its own code ["Securifies
Dealing Code”) to regulate the securities dealings by all the Directors and
relevant employees of the Group.

The Company made specific enquiry of all the Directors and members of the
senior management who confirmed that they complied with the Securities

Dealing Code during the Review Period.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development fo develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and

relevant.

During the Review Period, all Directors received regular briefings and
updates on the Group's business, operations, internal controls and corporate
governance matters. Relevant reading materials were provided to the
Directors. They also attended courses and seminars organised by external
professional bodies on fopics relevant o the duties and responsibilities of a
director during the Review Period. All Directors have provided the Company
with their respective training records pursuant to the CG Code.

Procedure for Seeking Independent Professional Advice by
Directors

There is a written procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, fo seek and be provided with independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expense in order to

assist them to discharge their duties to the Company.
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Functions of the Board
Distinctive Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

To avoid concentration of power in any one individual, a clear division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is
crucial fo the effective running of the Board and the day-to-day management
of the Group's businesses. The positions of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are held by two different Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Man Tai and Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza
respectively. Their roles and duties are segregated, with a clear division of
responsibilities. Mr. Cheng Man Tai, the Chairman, is to provide leadership
for the Board and ensure that the Board works effectively while Ms. Cheng
Pik Ho Liza, the Chief Executive Officer, is answerable to the Board for the

operations of the Group. Mr. Cheng is the father of Ms. Cheng.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management
While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging its duties, certain

responsibilities are delegated fo:

e the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Comnmittee. Each committee’s constitution, powers and duties are
clearly defined by its terms of reference, and the committees are
accountable fo the Board. Ad hoc Board committees may also be

esfablished as required from time fo time by the Board;

o the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-day
management of the businesses of the Group, is accountable fo the
Board: and

e the senior management team of the Group, being delegated with the
responsibilities to deal with daily operational functions, is answerable

to the Executive Directors.
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The Board believes that effective delegation of authority can ensure that the
Board is provided with sufficient and timely information of the Group's
businesses which is, in parficular, relevant to the Group's performance,
financial position and operating results, in order that the Board is able to
make an informed assessment of matters put before the Board for approval.
During the Review Period, each Executive Director had frequent meetings
with operational managers in order to maintain an effective feedback system
and enable the Company to react to changes or problems quickly and

effectively.

The functions reserved fo the Board are formalized in writing and include:

e any matters relafing to the formulation of the Company’s strafegy and
direction;

e any matters relating to financial controls, compliance and risk
management;

o any changes in corporate structure such as the changes relating fo the

Company's capital structure, including share buy-back or issue of new

securities;

o maijor appointments such as appointments to the Board, after taking
info account the recommendations of the Nomination Committee; the
appointment of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer;
recommendations to the shareholders on the appointment or removal
of external audifor after taking info consideration the recommendations
of the Audit Committee; and the appointment or removal of the Chief

Financial Officer and the Company Secrefary;

e any matters determined by the Board to be material, including
dividend policy, significant changes in accounting policies, material

confracts, major Hnoncing arrangements and major investments; and

e the corporate governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code.
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With respect fo the corporate governance functions, the Board has reviewed
and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
the fraining and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company's policies and pracfices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, and the Company’s compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of authority to
ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view of the Company’s
prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting systems are in

place.

Board Committees

A total of three Board committees, namely the Audit Commitiee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, have been
formed, each of which is delegated with specific roles and responsibilities
by the Board. All the Board committees follow the same principles and
procedures as those of the Board. The Board receives the minutes of each
committee meeting on a regular basis, including their decisions and

recommendations.

Audit Committee
At present, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-Executive

Direcfors, namely:

Mr. Lau Siu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. Llee Kwan Hung
Prof. lee T. S.

Members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board among the
Independent Non-Executive Directors and the committee consists of not less
than three members. The Board considers that each Audit Committee
member has broad commercial experience and together form a suitable mix
of expertise in the legal and accounting fields and that the composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements under Rule
3.21 of the listing Rules. The Board, after consultation with the chairman of
the Audit Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Audit Committee to

enable it fo discharge its duties.
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The Audit Commitiee has the responsibilities and powers set forth in its terms
of reference. To maintain its independence, the Audit Committee is required
fo have af least one meeting with the external auditor without the presence
of Executive Direcfors within a financial year. The function of the committee
is to provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities
to shareholders, potential shareholders, the investment community and other

stakeholders relafing fo:

e the infegrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the
Company;

e the assessment of the external auditor’'s qualifications and
independence;

* the performance of the Company's internal audit function and the

performance of the external auditor; and

e the effectiveness of the risk management and infernal control systems

of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the

Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings including
one meeting with the external audifor without the presence of the Executive
Directors and the management. The record of aftendance of individual
Directors at the committee meetings is set out on page 36 of this annual

report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee

during the Review Period:

[i)  review of the annual report and results announcement of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019, with a recommendation to

the Board for approval;

[i)  review of the external auditor's independence and their report, with a
recommendation fo the Board for the re-appoiniment of the external
auditor by the shareholders of the Company at its 2020 annual

general meeting;
(i) review of confinuing connected transactions;
livl  review of the inferim report and results announcement of the Company

for the six months ended 30 June 2020, with a recommendation to

the Board for approval;
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[v]  review of quarterly financial reports of the Company prepared by the

Finance and Accounts Department;

[vi)  consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the external

auditor;

[vii)  review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

systems of the Company and its subsidiaries;
[viii)  review of periodic reports prepared by the Audit Centre;

lix)  review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial

reporting functions, and their fraining programmes and budget; and

[x)  review of the audit fees payable to the external auditor for the year
ended 31 December 2020, with a recommendation to the Board for

approval.

Auditor’s Remuneration
The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/payable fo Ernst
& Young, the external auditor of the Company, for the following services

provided during the Review Period:

Services Rendered
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Remuneration
Paid/Payable
2t FEdEE

Audit services IR HK$2,488,000# 7T
Non-audit services JIEEIZLARTS HK$640,000 8 7T
Total: HEEt HK$3,128,000% 7T

The Audit Committee has expressed its views fo the Board that the level of
fees paid/payable fo the Company’s external auditor is reasonable. There
has been no major disagreement between the auditor and the management
of the Company during the Review Period.
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Nomination Committee

At present, the Nomination Committee has four members comprising one

Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely:

Prof. lee T. S. (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Llee Kwan Hung

The main functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, to identify individuals who are suitably
qualified to become Directors, and to assess the independence of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Affter considering the independence
and qualifications of nominees, the Nomination Committee makes
recommendations fo the Board so as to ensure that all nominations are fair
and transparent. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the succession planning of Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer. The Board, after consultation with the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, provides sufficient resources to the

Nomination Committee to enable it fo discharge its duties.
The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2020. The record of
attendance of individual Directors af the committee meeting is set out on

page 306 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination

Commitiee during the Review Period:

[} assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors;
li)  recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors;
[iii)  review of the existing sfructure, size and composition of the Board;

[iv)  recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of Executive

Directors and Chairman of the Company; and

[v]  recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of Independent

Non-Executive Directors of the Company.
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In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following
major criteria set out in the Company’s director nomination policy had been

considered by the Nomination Committee:
e character and integrity;

e qudlifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience relevant fo the Company's business and strategy, and
diversity aspects under the board diversity policy of the Company;

] requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the independence

guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

e willingness and ability fo devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;
and

e the overall ability to exercise good judgement and to provide valuable

insights and diverse perspective fo the Board.

The Nomination Committee, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new director and the biographical information of the candidate, had
evaluated such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate was qualified for directorship and made

recommendation to the Board to appoint the candidate for directorship.

With respect fo the re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting,
the Nomination Committee had reviewed the overall contribution and
services fo the Company of the refiring Directors and the level of participation
and performance on the Board fo determine whether the refiring Directors
would continue to meet the criteria as sef out above and made
recommendation fo the Board in respect of the proposed re-election of
Direcfors at the general meeting. The relevant information of the retiring
Directors together with the recommendation of the Board would then be
disclosed in the circular accompanying the notice of the general meeting
and sent o shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules and applicable

laws and regulations.
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As a good corporate governance practice, Nomination Committee member
[being also the Independent Non-Executive Director] abstained from

assessing his own independence and re-appointment.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the

Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Remuneration Committee

At present, the Remuneration Committee has four members comprising one

Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. lee Kwan Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza

Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Prof. lee T. S.

The main funcfions of the Remuneration Committee are fo assist the Board in
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy on
Directors’ and senior management’'s remuneration and to make
recommendation fo the Board on the packages [which include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments) of individual Executive
Direcfors and senior management (i.e. the model described in code
1.2(c)(ii] of the CG Code was adopted| as well as on the

remuneration of Non-Executive Directors. The Board, after consultation with

provision B.

the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, provides sufficient resources to

the Remuneration Committee fo enable it to discharge its duties.

In recommending the remuneration of the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee makes reference to companies of comparable business or scale,
and the nature and volume of work in order fo compensate the Directors
reasonably for their time and efforts spent. The Remuneration Committee
regularly reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2020. The record of
attendance of individual Directors at the committee meetings is sef out on

page 306 of this annual report.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration

Committee during the Review Period:
[i)  review of the Group's streamlining exercise and ifs financial impact;

[i)  recommendation fo the Board on the payment of discretionary
bonuses to the Executive Directors and staff in respect of the final
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the interim results of the Company for the six months ended 30 June

2020;

[ii)  review of the new service agreements between the Company and
Executive Directors of the Company, with a recommendation fo the

Board for approval;

liv)  review of the letters of re-appointment of the Independent Non-

Executive Direcfors, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

and

[v)]  recommendation fo the Board on the grant of share options under the
Share Option Scheme to Directors and selected employees.

As a good corporate governance practice, Remuneration Committee
member (being also the Independent Non-Executive Director) had not

involved in reviewing his own director’s fees.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the

Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

MrasMEE SR OBRIABMARITH IEME

) BEEEBEHASHNRIRAMBREE

i) MEARABEZZ—NF+ZA=+—HL=
BEAEBERZETEFA=1THLEREAZ
PR ES INBTEAFRITEERETHE
EGRHEE

(i)  FBEA \jiﬁiz'ﬁ’/_\\j#ﬂﬁ§$ﬁ_ﬁ’]¥ﬁﬁ§?k%
ZUREEFTE

v BRBUFRTESFNEEZREE  UEEE
EEEE; &

v FLIZERESREERETEERFERS
MEEGIRHERE °

AETREFNEXEELRER > HFNEETNE (TR
BUFPTES) ERE2HERNHBAZESRHES -

2/ ) PR BT 2 /A D 48 0 T B 4B 2 B
HEGHEMERE -

BEEEBERTATANRER 1 .5F  sREERE
HRERBE T ZF+_RB=+—HLEFEZH
e EnT

Number of
employees

BEAZ

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000

1,000,001 #7E 1,500,000 # 7T 2

2

Details of the remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December

2020 are set out in note 10 fo the financial statements.
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Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period, which shall give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company. During the Review Period, the Board
was not aware of any material uncertainties relafing fo events or condifions
that might cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue in
business. Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial statements of

the Company on a going concern basis.

All the Directors ocknow|edged their responsibihl‘y for preparing the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about the auditor's
reporfing responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 65 to 72 of this annual report.

The Company announces its interim and annual results as soon as
reasonably practicable affer the end of the relevant financial period and the
financial year respectively pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
disclosing all such information as would enable the Company’s shareholders

fo assess the performance, financial position and prospects of the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company, subject to the artficles of association of the
Company and all applicable laws and regulations. In recommending or
declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for
meeting ifs working capital requirements and future growth as well as ifs
shareholder value. The Company has no fixed dividend pay-out ratio. The
Board considers that, in general, the amount of dividends to be declared
will depend on the Group's financial results, cash position, capital
requirements, business conditions and sfrategies, and other factors as may
be considered relevant at such time by the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining appropriate risk management and infernal control systems of the
Group and reviewing their effectiveness. Risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Group has
esfablished comprehensive policies and procedures in areas of operational,

financial and risk controls.

The Group has an internal audit function. The Audit Centre of the Group
conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems. It carries out the financial, operational, project
management and information security control reviews according to the yearly
plan reviewed and endorsed by the Audit Committee. In addition to the
agreed schedule of work, the Audit Centre conducts other reviews and work
as and when required. The management, in coordination with the Audit
Centre, assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans,
and monitor the risk management progress. Findings and recommendations

are reported regularly fo members of the Audit Committee and the Board.

During the Review Period, the management has confirmed to the Board and
the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and infernal
control systems and the Board had conducted a review of its risk
management and infernal control systems of the Group under code provision
C.2.1 and considered them effective and adequate without the occurrence

of any significant failure.

The Audit Centre of the Group continued to provide independent assurance
to the Board and management on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems for the Group during the Review
Period. The Group Internal Audit Director reports functionally to the Audit
Committee and administratively to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board undertakes to periodically review the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group to ensure their effectiveness and

efficiency.
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The Board reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of sfaff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions, and their fraining programmes and budget during the
Review Period and considered that the Group had adequate staff resources
with the competence, qualifications and experience necessary for the
effective performance of its accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions.

A whistleblowing policy has been formulated with a view to providing a
mechanism for employees of the Group fo raise concerns about the possible
impropriefies in financial reporting, infernal control or other matters. Infernal
procedures are put in place whereby employees of the Group can report
possible risks and inside information identified in daily operation to the
Board. Furthermore, the Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide fo the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential information,

monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Company Secretary

Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider, has
been engaged by the Company as its Company Secrefary. The primary
confact person af the Company, whom Ms. So can confact, is Ms. Law Yuk

Ying, the Group Financial Controller of the Company.

During the Review Period, Ms. So has taken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders

The Company has engaged a professional public relations consultancy
company to organise various invesfor relations programs (including regular
briefing meetings with the media and analysts) aiming at increasing the
fransparency of the Compony, enhoncing communication with shareholders
and investors, increasing their understanding of and confidence in the
Group's businesses and promoting market recognition of and support to the

Company.

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining on-going
communications with its shareholders and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and senior

management.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company by
Shareholders

In accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
an extraordinary general meefing can be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
vofing at general meefings. Such requisition shall be made in writing fo the
Directors or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Directors for the

fransaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries by shareholders to be put to the Board can be sent in writing fo the
Company's Company Secretarial Department at the principal place of

business in Hong Kong.

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the Company's registered shareholders can contact the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited. For other enquires or requests, the Company's investors can confact
iPR Ogilvy Limited, the Company’s investor relations consultancy company.
Detailed contact information is available on the Company’s website af

www.embrygroup.com.
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Procedures for Making Proposals af Shareholders’ Meetings

If o shareholder of the Company wishes 1o nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director, the following documents must be validly sent o the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, namely
(i) his/her notice of infention to propose a resolution at the general meeting;
and (i) a notice executed by the nominated candidate of the candidate'’s
willingness 1o be appointed. The period for lodgment of the nofices of |i)
and (i) above will commence no earlier than the day affer the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting and end no lafer than seven days prior to

the date of such meeting.

To put forward proposals other than the above at a general meeting,
shareholders of the Company should submit a written notice of those
proposals with their defailed confact information to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The notice
period to be given to all the shareholders for consideration of the proposal
raised by the shareholders concemed at general meetings varies according

fo the nature of the proposal.

During the Review Period, the Company has not made any changes fo its
articles of association. An upto-date version of the articles of association of
the Company is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the articles of association for further

details of the rights of shareholders.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal acfivities of the subsidiaries are set out in nofe 38 to the financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends
The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the Group's

financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
7310 176.

The directors did not recommend the payment of interim dividend during the
final dividend of HK2.5

cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the register

year. The directors recommend the payment of a

of members on 26 May 2021. Defails of dividends are set out in nofe 14
to the financial statements.

Summary Financial Information
A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for

the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

consolidated financial statements is set out below.

EERSHRERAATRENBAT (G 4
B)BE-S-SF A=+ —BLEENEE
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Results e
Year ended 31 December
H#E=E+-B=+—HILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 I—IK$ ‘000
F#ET FET FHET FHET FHBT
REVENUE s 1,650,483 2,266,867 2,451,874 2,339,524 2,216,082
PROFIT BEFORE TAX PR AT EF 20,519 125,275 227,076 675,459 158,447
INCOME TAX EXPENISE ER{S#RESZ (23,343) (44,953 (75,911} (180,160 [60,045)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR S EE#HFI (E548) (2,824) 80,322 151,165 405,299 98,402
Attributable to: BUF ALFENR

Owners of the Company PiN/N=IEZ 2 =DN (2,824) 80,322 151,165 495,299 98,402
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Summary Financial Information (confinved)
Assets and Liabilities

B )
BEERERE

As at 31 December

B+ZRA=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ET8FE “2F ZT-N\EFE 2—tF T—RE
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T TE7T T TET
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 3,429,445 3,504,496 3,290,251 3,249,851 2,495,379
TOTAL LIABILITIES aEAE (941,056) (1,155,221) (@58,532) (882,741) (775,892)
2,488,389 2,349,275 2,331,719 2,367,110 1,719,487

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Share Capital

Defails of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set

out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's arficles
of association or the laws of the Cayman lslands which would oblige the

Company fo offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or

sold any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
caleulated in accordance with the Companies Llaw, Chapter 22 (law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
HK$942,793,000, of which HK$10,560,000 has been proposed as final
dividend for the year after the reporting period. The amount of
HK$942,793,000, includes the Company's share premium and contributed
surplus of HK$767,760,000 in aggregate at 31 December 2020, which
may be distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be disfributed, the Company will be in a position fo

pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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FEERRARE - A81042,793,0008 THEFEE
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Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling

HK$4,203,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers and
purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for less than
30% of the tofal sales and purchases for the year, respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial inferest in the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up fo the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Man Tai (Chairman)

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza (Chief Executive Officer)
Madam Ngok Ming Chu

Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen

Ms. Lu Qun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. lee Kwan Hung
Prof. lee T. S.

In accordance with article 108 of the Company's articles of association,
Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Mr. Lau Siu Ki and Mr. Llee Kwan Hung will refire
by rofafion and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM”).

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. Lau
Siu Ki, Mr. lee Kwan Hung and Prof. lee T. S. pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), and as at the date of this
report, still considers them to be independent.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior

management of the Group are set out on pages 26 to 31 of the annual

report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association, subject fo the applicable
laws, every direcfor of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assefs of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of his/her office. The Company has taken out insurance against
the liability and costs associated with defending any proceedings which

may be brought against directors of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts
Mr. Cheng Man Tai, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza, Madam Ngok Ming Chu,

Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun, have each entered info a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years commencing on 23
August 2020, 1 December 2019, 25 March 2020, 22 September 2019
and 2 February 2021, respectively.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has been appointed for a

ferm of two years commencing on 25 November 2020.

Under the service agreement, affer each complete year of service, the
remuneration payable to each of the executive directors may, subject fo the
discrefion of the Company's board of directors, be increased by not more
than 10% and the executive directors are entitled to a discretionary
management bonus provided that the tofal amount of bonuses payable to all
the executive directors for that year shall not exceed 8% of the audited

consolidated profit after tax of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for reelection at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not deferminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.
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g 3127 3 ¢

BRI ~ BB+~ BN T WERKE
REBRZTEDREAAB TR HE > DAH
—EIEENBIA=HZE2—NF+ZA—H~
—ECEF-A+HANZE—NEFELBZ+Z
HEr_E-—F "B _HistAHmE o

BEIUFNTERE 2 EH S EF+—A"+4H
HESHEREME ©

RIERF W% » SRIRERTE—FRE > ZHER
TEFENFWIRARADEFENFERERMNFZ
FE10% > MEITEF IR WEEYIREIRTEAL » 1IN
FEXN2ERTESNTEARERNSENAER
PR BB AR ENBI8% -

fr bR IEN > BENEERREFANE LEESE
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Report of the Directors

o H W

Emolument Policy and Directors’
Remuneration

The Group's emolument policy is formulated based on the performance of
individual employees and is reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group's
profitability, the Group may also provide discretionary bonuses to its
employees as an incentive for their contribution to the Group. The primary
goal of the emolument policy with regard to the remuneration packages of
the Group's executive directors is to enable the Group fo retain and motivate
executive directors by linking their compensation with performance as

measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group's remuneration packages include basic

salaries, discretionary bonuses and housing benefits.

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval at general meefings.
Other emoluments are defermined by the Company's board of directors with
reference fo direcfors’ duties, responsibiliies and performance and the results

of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save for transactions as disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements, no
director nor a connected entity of a director had a material inferest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or confracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2020, the inferests and short positions of the directors and
chief executive in the share capital and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

"Model Code”), were as follows:

DE G S T Ko

FEENMEHRRDRBFEHNERENRTGE > I
EEHETRS - WYEEENENENTE - £&
Er A EESRENBTEA  (FAKRSHAER
EHBE MR - AEBRTEEMEASHME
BREIBEEBBRAITEEHFINEH LT ED
NE BRI ENRIFHN > BAEETIRE R
HITES -

FEEMSASHIZRMOEELTFE « BIBTT
ARERER o

BEEMEERRREARG LESRRAE  Htbls
AIHARBEFESREFOHT BEAERERYU
RAEEFEEMETE °

HHRZY ~ k& S

PR 5 ERARMEE 1 SPTIREERISR 7 9 - EEF S EL R A
ERNENEENRBHARE > HIERABSNEEMR
MEABNLANAEREBEME BERNEMR
7~ P AN ERSERESEA R

o2 B A AR R R B B A B A
P W i 2t e B AT

RIBEZEBF+A=1+—H > ESERTHEIN
FRBEREBEEE (ERRBHRAERG) (T585
FEREARBI) 55XV 8) BRA R ARRAIR D PR AT A
KFABRBESFKAERGIE 352 FENE L
AR Em KRR > WARBE EHETAEEETE
FRERETR (TRETH) BAARAT KRB
PREVEI R AT
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

o8 B 1 AR RO i B B A B A

Interests and Short Positions in Shares Gy W RE S B BB ()
and Underlying Shares (continved)
long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAATZEBNETE
Percentage of
Number of the Company's
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FRisRR{RRRiE AR BRT
ERHE BipkiEREEE i1, BRETETR fTETH#E IRASHIFALE
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Inferest of controlled Ordinary shares (Nofe 1) 249,137,574 58.98
corporations
BHRLE gl NI 5 Limeg (aE 1)
Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 2,983,688 0.71
EREEA Bk
Beneficial owner Share options (Note 2) 1,430,000 0.34
BEmEEA BRI (52 2)
Interest of spouse Ordinary shares (Nofe 3) 2,334,369 0.55
BBt ZiB (M52 3)
Interest of spouse Share option (Notes 2 & 3) 1,300,000 0.31
FofdfEm BRIRHE (Waz 2713)
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Interest of controlled Ordinary shares (Nofe 1) 249,137,574 58.98
corporations
ERBZ T TR AR ER Limhe (st 1)
Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 2,334,369 0.55
BEmEEA ik
Beneficial owner Share options (Note 2) 1,300,000 0.31
BERBEAA BRI (057 2)
Inferest of spouse Ordinary shares (Nofe 3 2,983,688 0.71
Bofdtem ZiBk (M5t 3)
Inferest of spouse Share option (Notes 2 & 3) 1,430,000 0.34

FofBfEs

FERRE (W32 270 3)
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Report of the Directors

o H W

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares

and Underlying Shares (confinved)

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: [continued)

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FrsR{s, BRtE EE AR ET
R B RiEREE ki IREGTETIR fTETAHA RENESE
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 26,990,478 6.39
BEELLT BEmEBA EiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Note 2) 1,220,000 0.29
BRBEAA FERRIE (a2 2)
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 513,793 0.12
BEDKE BEmEBA EiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Note 2) 295,000 0.07
BRBEAA FERRIE (a2 2)
Ms. Lu Qun Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 1,024,057 0.24
R ut BEmEBA EiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Note 2) 665,000 0.16
BRBEAA FERRIE (a2 2)
Mr. Lau Siu Ki Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 768,000 0.18
FEERE BEmEBA EiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Note 2) 100,000 0.02
BRBEAA FERRIE (a2 2)
Mr. lee Kwan Hung Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 522,000 0.12
FERE BEmEBA EiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Note 2) 100,000 0.02
BRBEAA FERRIE (a2 2)
Prof. lee T.S. Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 604,000 0.14
EXREEE BEBEAA EiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Note 2) 100,000 0.02

BmBEAA

EIRE (7 2)



Report of the Directors

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continved)

Notes:

1. These shares are held as to 247,848,510 shares by Harmonious World
Limited ("Harmonious World") and as to 1,289,064 shares by Fairmout
Investments Limited (“Fairmout Investments”). Harmonious World is owned as to
59.09% by Mr. Cheng Man Tai and as to 40.91% by Madam Ngok Ming
Chu. Fairmout Investments is owned as to 50% by Mr. Cheng Man Tai and as
to 50% by Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued to the
respective direcfors upon the exercise of the share options granted to each of
them under the share option scheme adopted on 28 May 2020 (the “Share
Option Scheme"). Defails of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note
31 o the financial statements.

3. Madam Ngok Ming Chu is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Tai.

long positions in ordinary shares of an associated corporation:

9E B A7 0048 R B e HH B R
by O RESR B IR B ()

et -

1. ZE R BEHarmonious World Limited (THarmonious
World.J) Bz Fairmout Investments Limited (MFairmout Investments 1)
5B H247848 5108% & 19 521,289,004 8% B& 15 ©
Harmonious World %3 Bl FH ER Gk 2= o 4= e S BR TR &2 T
BH59.09%E40.91% % © Fairmout Investments 733
SR E R ER% TR HE 50% K 50% o

2. WHEREREGTEREN _ZTERA"+N\H
AR B R st B (TRE AR RERT ) ) PR IR B AR AT
WO S R B ITRIRM B - BRREST B BN M
RERIIZES T IREE ©

3. ERHRR AT E RS -

PAEELEE SRR A

Percentage of
the associated

Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number nature of issued share
Name of director corporation Company of shares interest capital
5B EE
=¥ /NS 55k B81TiRE
EENR HECEERTE HIRAR Liab 4= i E BESEE
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Harmonious Ultimate holding 57.91 shares of Beneficial 59.09
World company US$1 each owner
Bz R AT 5791 ek BHEAA
EN=REST
nlieahn
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Harmonious Ultimate holding 40.09 shares of Beneficial 40.91
World company US$1 each owner
ERR% L RN 40.09 &R BHEAA
EN=REST
nlieahn

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the directors
and chief executive of the Company had registered an inferest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required fo be recorded pursuant fo section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

bR EiREEN  RZBEF+_A=+—H
EARNBERRITHIBHN A B E B
BRI A BRI GS P IES IRIES S R EKRE
352 B AB S MANER R A - IRBIZEST
BZBBHI AN T BB S P s S A o
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interest
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above and in the
section “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, ifs holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party fo
any arrangement fo enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

Share Option Scheme

Defails of the Share Option Scheme and the share option movements during
the year are disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme was 22,241,663 shares, representing
approximately 5.27% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2020, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company (other than the inferests of the direcfors of the

Company as disclosed above) were recorded in the register of interests

o L By s A 57 R HE A

bR EX TEERITHABHI RN AR RN B K
MBI R TX KRR FTiREES » ERES
HWEESBHERBIRT+/N\ROFLRERER
FERREERENUBBEEART RN AESFM
o WETETEZSEN » AQF ~ REERAT
FEEMNE AR TR LR ZHREEEATI
BEMEMEABERNZSER -

Y P i i 1)
R 5 B IR R AR R B B B RN
B3 E -

RAREEE > BRESEIIE T AIHETRN A
#%22,241,6630% > (AR RBEETRANS.27% °

T 8B ILA N R A B B
13l e 1 1 B

N TETTEFTA=+—H > T AL (EXFRR
B2 ARBEFEERIN REAT B ETRATE
BS% WA LBEEA T RBIRE RS REERGE

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO: 336 1EFENE MRS ©
Llong positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RANBEBRNEA
Percentage of
the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued share
Name nature of interest shares held capital
HEATBRIT
Ha SR iEREE Fr¥sR& IR 88 RAEHEDEE
Harmonious World Beneficial owner 247,848,510 58.67
(Note 1)
Bm#EBEA (Hfa£1)
Pandanus Associates Inc. Interest of controlled 41,912,000 .92
corporations [Note 2)
SEEH A B (Hfz£2)
Pandanus Partners L.P. Interest of controlled 41,912,000 0.92
corporations [Note 2)
SEEH A B (HtaE2)
FIL Limited Interest of controlled 41,912,000 9.92
corporations (Note 2)
SR B (HtaE2)
Sinowide Investments Limited Beneficial owner 30,000,000 7.10

BEmEBA
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o H W

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares (confinved)

Notes:

1. The relationship between Harmonious World, Mr. Cheng Man Tai and
Madam Ngok Ming Chu is disclosed under the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”
above.

2. Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of Pandanus Partners L.P. who in
furn owns or controls onethird or more of voting rights in FIL Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
"Directors’ and Chief Executive's Inferests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required fo be
recorded pursuant fo section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the direcfors, at least 25% of the Company's tofal
number of issued shares were held by the public as af the date of this report.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance with the

requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1) Purchase of furniture and decoration services
On 22 December 2017, the services agreement which was entered
into between the Company, certain subsidiaries of the Group and the
related companies in relation to the purchase of furniture and services
of decoration for counters and shops as well as different types of
moulds (the “Services”) on 22 December 2014 had been further
renewed for another term of three years commencing on 1 January
2018 after the expiry of the third term (the 2017 Agreement”). The
related companies are controlled by an executive director of the
Company. Further details were disclosed in the Company's

announcement dated 22 December 2017.

3 W By Il O\ R B B Be
B % 7 i HiE 2 sm)

et :

1. Harmonious World ~ B8 o & K S BR Tk 22 = 2 AN
RAGRINER L TE B RITEAEE N RD KR AERIRRS
HEERXEI BT ©

2. Pandanus Associates Inc. 2 Pandanus Partners L.P. B9 &
BAEBA > BEHEBLZESFL limited =93 2 —3IU
G ERE o

BRESEEESN > RZEFFE+_A=+—8>#
AL (RESN EX TEERITBHEHN RN KR8
RO EE R —BNRATEERN KA
NERMARRRND TR RBEE S RAERSE
336 FRARERAVEMEKE ©

FE IR 25 R R I

R A A ST EHARER - LR ERAA - 1
A3 B AATNTHTRAEERRL 25%
ARNLTHA o

FHIBARY)
R AEEIETT U THEMERS RS
BB IIRYE EASIRAIE | 4A BEVIRER LA o

(1) RERBREERTS
N_E—tFE+ "B -+H > ARBKRAEE
EETHBABHEBEABDN S —OF+=
B+ HTUIRAR B ERM R EEIRE U
B A (MTZERE)) NRBHENRE =4
ERECBEEESR B _T—/\E—HF—Hit
A EE ((CTE—tERE) - ZMEQT
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Report of the Directors
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

(1)

(2)

Purchase of furniture and decoration services (continued)
On 7 September 2018, another services agreement was entered into
between the Company, certain subsidiaries of the Group and a
related company in relation to the Services from a related company
controlled by close family members of the above executive director of
the Company (the "2018 Agreement’). The annual cap amounts for
the transactions contemplated under the 2018 Agreement for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2020 were shared with that of
the 2017 Agreement. Further defails were disclosed in the Company's
announcement dafed 7 September 2018.

Both services agreements expired on 31 December 2020 and the
Company therefore entered info a new services agreement (the “New
Agreement’) with the related companies during the year. Under the
New Agreement, the Group agreed to purchase the Services from the
related companies for a period of three years starting from 1 January
2021. Further details were disclosed in the Company's
announcements dated 14 December 2020 and 29 December 2020.

The confinuing connected fransactions confemplated under the above
services agreements would only be subject to the reporting, annual
review and announcement requirements and are exempt from the

independent shareholders” approval requirement under the Lisfing Rules.

Lease of warehouse

A subsidiary of the Company has been leasing a warehouse in Hong
Kong from an executive director of the Company. The continuing
connected fransaction under the tenancy agreement constitutes a de
minimis transaction under the Listing Rules and is exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent

shareholders” approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Defails of the above continuing connected transactions of the Group are set

out in note 13(a) to the financial statements.

FNHEBARY #)

(1)

(2)

REERLRRERS @)

R-B—\ENBLH > FATRKEEET
MBASR R CRAATRTEENRE
FRESIMRRIE A )] 17 5 — R S AR5 4A0
BORRTS i (T — \F ) - —B—N\E
HHE T T 2 R R R B EiGHE TR
BAERSHE_S-SFE+I_A=+—HBL
FERECEEFRGHE  E—SHBERAA
SHEA =S —/\FAAEANALHIKE -

MEREREON _E_EF+_A=+—8H
B FAEAABREREREATI L8
WMERF ek (THtpagl) o RIEMHE > AEE
AEOREATBEZSERYE BT _—F
—A—HiEstBH=F - B ERALATH
AT E_ZE+_B+UHE-ZE-ZTF
+ZAZ+HNHEMNAERIFE -

R L RB B ETHRERERS - R
HBETETRAUTHER FEEZRAEHN
RE - W RETBILRRHERRE -

HEEE

TRB—BNBRABEARRAT —BRTES
HEMUREBN—ERE - REBEHZRRE
TR BRAERZ BN TR TR ERIEE
RIKTRIZS > FIERRIET EHARA T RYEH
] FESZ - AEREILIRRHERIRE

TRAEBRFERAERZNHBHN M BRERME
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
directors have reviewed the continuing connected fransactions disclosed in
[1) above and confirmed that the continuing connected transactions have

been entered info:
[l inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

[ii)  according fo the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as

a whole.

The total amount in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in (1) above during the year under review has not exceeded the

annual cap for the transactions.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above, the
directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the

year under review.

The Company has also received a letter from Emst & Young, the Company's
auditor, fo report on the Group's continuing connected fransactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Audifor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Emst &
Young have issued the lefter confaining their findings and conclusions in
respect of the contfinuing connected fransactions disclosed in (1) above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the listing Rules confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing

connected fransactions:
[l have not been approved by the Company's board of directors;

[i)  were nof enfered into, in all maferial respects, in accordance with the

relevant agreements goveming the fransactions; and

[ii)  have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap disclosed in

previous announcement of the Company.

NHERERY @)

BAIIFRITEFCRE LHRRE 14ASSIRER L
XE)ERENFBRERS » WEDZERER
BR5

[l REEREBEBRER—REBBIEPIL
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R TAATERRRA BN 1T o

EXENERENFEHER SN OEEENRE
B EBAAMXENEE LR

EEmIEAQTNOBEFEER L XXIRENFER
BRBET EHRAE VAABPTENRERTE

ARB ERERABZHMENZ K 5HENE IR
o BREBEAMAGEHN(EBEREERS
#ERI 3000) B9 TR £ FS B I B 51 BRI XS89 & B
FERE ) W 2 R(BEFRPA) B 74058 TR EE( LT
R P FF A R R Z B9 R BN R ) T A EE
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Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 is
provided in the sections “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and
"Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on page 3, pages 8 fo 11,
and pages 13 to 23 respectively of this Annual Report. For environmental
policies and performance, compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations, and a description of relationships with key stakeholders, please
refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” which will be
available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited together with this Annual Report.

Auditor

Ernst & Young refire and a resolution for the re-appointment as auditor of the

Company will be proposed at the AGM.
On behalf of the Board
Cheng Man Tai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2021

55 Inl jgi
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry Holdings
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
73 to 176, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated sfatement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ["HKSAs"] issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a

basis for our opinion.

B R SERERATDZEKRE
(RHESEESAMAILZHIRAE)

=9 7)
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MmN » BREEEESTERME
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed

the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relafion to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
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accompanying consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed EsvE s
Key audit matter the key audit matter B HIE RIERREEE
Inventory provision FaERF
As at 31 December 2020, the Group  We tested the accuracy of the RZE_ZTE+_F HZMAEISR S£ERE
had net inventories of ageing analysis of the Group's =+—H > EEENFEFE SNFHERMEINTo

HK$578,590,000, representing

50% and 17% of the Group's current

assets and fofal assets, respectively.
The estimation of the inventory
provision requires significant
management judgement, which
includes the recoverability of the cost
of inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods and

the future usage of raw materials.

Related disclosures about the

accounting estimation and the details

of inventory provision are included in
notes 3, @ and 20 to the financial

statements.

inventories. We recalculated the
inventory provision under the
Group's policy and assessed the
assumptions being used in the
inventory provision calculation by
reviewing the basis, the rationale
and the consistency of the inventory
provision policy, considering the
historical and current inventory
ageing information and taking into
account the historical sales pattern

of aged inventories.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key audit matters (continved)
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How our audit addressed BFIME R
Key audit matter the key audit matter FAREEIE EIZRRR Tt HIA
Impairment assessment of H{th&E E R R ET

Other Asset

As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had Other Asset (as defined in note 19
to the financial statements) of
HK$426,667,000, representing 17%
and 12% of the Group's net assefs
and total assets, respectively. Under
the annual impairment testing, the
Group conducted the impairment
assessment by comparing the nef
carrying amount of Other Asset with
its fair value as determined based on
the valuation performed by external
valuers and a method of valuation
which involved certain assumptions,
including gross unif rate per square
mefre. The assumptions used in the
valuation have involved significant

management {udgement

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the details of
impairment assessment of Other Asset
are included in notes 3 and 19 to the

financial statements.

With regard fo management's
impairment assessment of Other Assef,
we reviewed the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the
external valuers engaged by
management and assessed the related
data and assumptions being adopted,
including unobservable inputs and other
esimates, by comparing key valuation
parameters including the gross unit rate
per square mefre with market
information. VWe involved our valuation
specidlists o assist us in reviewing the
valuation methodologies and key
valuation parameters on the fair value
estimation of Other Assef. We also
assessed the disclosures relating to the
assumptions used in defermining the fair
value of Other Asset in the

consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Key audit matters (continved)

B B 75 B O (2)

How our audit addressed #EMsvEHMA
Key audit matter the key audit matter RREtEIR RIERMREER
Impairment assessment of EREEERERE
right-of-use assets
As at 31 December 2020, the Group  We evaluated management's RIEZTZEHF+-F RMERE SEEMN
had rightofuse assets of impairment assessment and the =+—H EEENEHR SFHBERKEFURK
HK$190,053,000, representing 8%  identification of CGUs or groups of BEE#100,053000% MY SEBEBNT
and 6% of the Group's non-current CGUs based on the Group's 7T DRIEER EEEE B IAEEERRS
assets and fotal assefs, respectively. accounting policies and our MBBEREEENSL k. ELBUNREELS

Management performed impairment
assessments on the Group's rightof-
use assets where an indicator of
impairment of rightofuse assets
existed. During the year, an
impairment of right-of-use assets of
HK$47,608,000 was recognised to
reduce the carrying amounts of certain
rightofuse assefs fo their recoverable

amounts.

When performing the impairment test,
management determined the
recoverable amounts of the relevant
cash-generating units ("CGUs") or
groups of CGUs as af 31 December
2020 based on value in use
calculations using the discounted cash
flow method. Significant management
judgement and estimates were
involved in the assessments of the
recoverable amounts of CGUs or
groups of CGUs, for example
budgeted sales, budgeted expenses
and discount rate. The outcome was
sensitive fo the expected future market
conditions and the actual performance
of the CGUs or groups of CGUs.

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the details
of impairment assessment of right-of-
use assets are included in notes 3, 9

and 18 to the financial statements.

understanding of the Group's
business.

In evo|uoﬁng management’s
impairment assessment, we also
assessed (i) the value in use
calculation methodology adopted by
management in determining of
recoverable amounts of CGUs or
groups of CGUs, and [ii) the key

assumptions used in the calculations:

—  for budgeted sales and
expenses, by comparing the
Group's budgets of the
relevant CGUs with the

historical results; and

—  for discount rate, by making
reference to market data and
comparable companies in the
industry with the assistance of
our internal valuation

specialists.

We also assessed the disclosures of
the impairment of rightof-use assets
included in note 18 to the financial

statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required fo report that fact. VWe have nothing fo report

in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such infernal
control as the direcfors determine is necessary fo enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability fo confinue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the direcfors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or

have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
dischorging their responsibihﬂes for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due fo fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumsfances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

% 1 I K A S o 5 U R 9
¥ B AE

RANER  BHGROVHRRERESNMFEAR
MFF I RME R EAHERRAIIS SIRRE - I
LRBEHMARRNZEMKRS - HFANRSERS
BRIRRRH > FRILLSN » RIRERFTAERMABR -
HPIBT TR ENATAEAEMA TETNEE
ERIEE -

BERBESNTHFRE  ETERBIZB(EES
SHERDETHES > ER —EAHERREFERE
BEEEIR - SRSRMRIL AT AR REFEEEER S RE » INRS1E
R EMERIERERTEF BRAMBREKME
RERBERS M BRERFTEHEERE » BB
BUSEERIRIAL FIRARIFEK o

ERB(EBESER) ETBNBRES » ZME
BT EEHE - RIT T ERIRREAE o JATF -

o HAIFEHNIGFEHERMER GRS MR
REEERERMRANER > Rt RPITE
BFUBHEBELRRE  URERTEMNEEMN
BitRRE 0 FRARMERNERE - AINEREER
BEW KRR~ RiE ~ ERER - ERRE > 5
ERIENERIZ £ AEREEE IR AT
EYHEXRERRAN ARSI AR IRRE
SRMER A E ASESR BRI A o

° TR HERAR A ERIES] 0 UREHEE S
2 BEENLIEE SEBRIEGING
HHERER -

s MEEEMRASSEENNEMRELE
EEH AR BRI SR -



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriafeness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncerfainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audifor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group fo cease fo continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contfent of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken fo eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected fo outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent audifor’s
report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22 /F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

18 March 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 December 2020 H#E_—_E_F&H&+_A=+—HIEE

2020 2019
—ECZF —T-NEF
Nofes HK$’000 HK$'000
=3 F#ET FET
REVENUE Wi 5 1,650,483 2,266,867
Cost of sales THER A (467 ,996) (504,138)
Gross profit EF 1,182,487 1,762,729
Other income and gains, net H A RIS » SB%E 6 71,485 46,289
Selling and distribution expenses HHEE KD tHRE 2 (958,518) (1,413,639
Administrative expenses TBRZ (172,840 [236,662)
Impairment of rightof-use assefs EREEERE 18(a) (47,608) -
Other expenses HithFsz 7 (34,851) (5,924)
Finance costs =N 8 (19,636) (27,518)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX PRAR AT Q 20,519 125,275
Income fax expense TSz 12 (23,343) 44,953)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR TATIEE AEN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEEN(B548)
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (2,824) 80,322
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BATER AFEWS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SREFH, (FH)
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15
— Basic (HK cents) — HZ (FB1) (0.67) 19.01
— Diluted (HK cents) — 58 B (0.67) 19.01
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2020 H#E_—_E_F&H&+_A=+—HIEE

2020 2019
—E_F “ENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEGH 7 (§548) (2,824) 80,322
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) Hh2EWA ~ (FI%)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REBEB e EHR D EERGN
that may be reclassified fo the income Hh2mEmlB A, Bix) -
statement in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of ITEIEINSIBFESY 2
foreign operations PERERE 147,297 (27,558)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) RERHEBAEHOEE
that will not be reclassified to the income IBEMNEME A (Bs)
stafement in subsequent periods:
Revaluation surplus BEER 9,735 3,745
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation REESHHEBINRZ
reserve (note 28) IESERRIA (HifaE 28) (2,434) (936)
Net other comprehensive income that will not RERPEAGEHDEEEREN
be reclassified to the income statement HihemW A 5%
in subsequent periods 7,301 2,809
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FEHMEEKA (%) »
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Np&MIE 154,598 (24,749)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR BAEEE AELEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 2EUIALEZE 151,774 55,573




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2020 2019
—EEHE —E—hEF
Nofes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt F#ET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y EN =Y 5 ] 16 1,122,637 1,119,462
Investment properties BEY)E 17 448,193 403,126
Rightof-use assets FREEE 18(a) 190,053 293,381
Other asset HithEE 19 426,667 402,697
Deferred tax assets BIERIEEE 28 71,255 92,306
Deposits and other receivables e R EMEWIE 22 23,544 25,031
Total non-current assets EREEELE 2,282,349 2,336,003
CURRENT ASSETS TRENE
Inventories =5 20 578,590 /92,354
Trade receivables FEULEE SRR 21 67,060 79,814
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfT A ~ s K HAhFEUR SR IE 22 76,297 95,686
Tax recoverable AW EIRIE - 409
Cash and cash equivalents e KIES%EY) 23 425,149 200,230
Total current assets BB EALE 1,147,096 1,168,493
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEnEE
Trade payables e B Z BRI 24 35,591 52,723
Inferestbearing bank borrowings stEIRITER 25 101,625 125,566
Lease liabilities HEaRE 18(b) 61,373 Q0,449
Tax payable FEIIRIE 5,688 4,409
Other payables and accruals HAFE NI Bt IR 26 204,766 225,460
Total current liabilities mENBaEMEE 409,043 498,607
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFRE 738,053 669,886
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERTHAaE 3,020,402 3,005,889
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERENEI(R
Inferestbearing bank borrowings stEIRITER 25 362,791 432,614
lease liabilities HEaE 18(b) 32,067 68,661
Deferred liabilities == 27 - 414
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEAE 28 132,455 154,925
Other payables HAFEAIE 26 4,700 -
Total non-current liabilities ERFBaEEE 532,013 656,614
Net assets BEFE 2,488,389 2,349 275
EQUITY K
Equity atiributable to owners of the Company =2 F##EH AEGERE
Share capifal N 29 4,224 4,224
Reserves {15 30 2,484,165 2,345,051
Total equity “ERE T 2,488,389 2,349 275

Cheng Man Tai
L &3

Director

EF

Cheng Pik Ho Liza

EREEE
Director

BEF
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Year ended 31 December 2020 H#E_—_E_F&H&+_A=+—HIEE

Consolidated SToTemenT of Changes in Equity
/I~

Atributable fo owners of the Company

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

BATRE AE
Reserves
e
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset  statutory Share  Exchange
Share  premium  Confributed  revaluation  reserve opfion  fluctuation ~ Goodwill  Retained Total Total
capil  occount  surplus reserve fnds  reseve  reserve  reserve profs  reserves equity
kit BEEfS LRERR EREH
s EER  R4ER i tEdRE BREGH B HEEE  REEN ABR SER
Noles HKY000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK000  HK$000

fi T  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  FEm FEm

Jhote 30) Jhote 30) froke 30)
(i 30) (His£30) (£30)
At Jonuary 2020 RZZZ55-F-H 424 386512 122610 15060 189,101 - (95,733 (3,168) 1730669 2,345,051 2,349,275
Loss for the year EEFB - - - - - - - - (2,824) (2,824) (2,824)
Revaluation surplus Ly 16 - - - 9,735 - - - - - 9,735 9,735
Deferred fox debited o assef REEEEER
revaluation reserve BB 28 - - - (2,434) - - - - - (2,434) (2,434)
Exchange differences reloted WEENEEREL .
fo foreign operafions EREE - - - - - - 14797 - - 797 1291
Total comprehensive income/ FR2ENA/ () 5
[expensel for he year - - - 7301 - - 197 - (2824 151774 151,774
2019 final dividend declored and poid ENstme gk
KBRS 14 - - - - - - - - (12672 (12672 (12,672
Eouiysefled share opfion arrangemen's L EERERH 31 - - - - - 12 - - - 12 12
Transferfrom refained profi [ - - - - 735 - - - (735) - -
At 31 December 2020 RIE_ZF
+ZB=t-A 4204 386512 122610 22,31 189,836 12 51,564 (3,168) 1714438 2,484,165 2,488,389
1 ooy 2019 o 404 S 1260 1225 18059 SEBY BIE 16082 237495 2331719
Profi for the year FERR - - - - - = = - 8032 8032 8032
Revaluation surplus BftRE 16 - - - 3,745 - - - - - 3,745 3,745
Deferred fox debited fo assef REEEMEHENR
revaluation resenve EILRE 28 - - - 936) - - - - - (936) 936)
Exchange differences reofed e EEREL
fo foreign operafions EQRER - - - - - - 127 558) - - [27558)  (27,558)
Total comprehensive income/ EREENA/ ()
[expense] for he year i - - - 2809 - - [27558) - 80,322 55,573 55,578
2018 fincl dividend declored ond paid BRRE=E-N\E
FHBRE 14 - - - - - - - - (29569 (20569 (29.569)
2019 inferim dividend “E-NERERE 14 - = = = = = = = (8.448) 8.448) 8,448
Transfer from refained profis EREDHF - - - - 8,508 - - - 8,508 - -
431 Decenber 2019 KENEHTAZH-B 426 W52 12610 15060 189101 SRS 168 173069 2345051 2349275




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2020 H#E_—_E_F&H&+_A=+—HIEE

2020 2019
—ECEHE ey
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE F#ET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PRI AT RF 20,519 125,275
Adijustments for: FHEE
Finance costs G107 8 19,636 27,518
Bank inferest income IRITFIBUWA 6 (4,519) (1,543)
Interest accretion on non-current receivables JEENERFE SRR IBRI A 232 h0 6 (1,211) (1,949)
Covid-19-related rent concessions AR AR Covid-19-
from lessors BISHEENEEER Q (8,590) -
Equity-setiled share option expense It E B R 2 ? 12 -
Depreciation of property, plant BEEEZINE
and equipment % 76,585 79,219
Depreciation of rightof-use assets FRAEEEZINE Q 96,305 105,384
Loss/(gain) on termination of leases KIEREZ 8% (W) 9 (460) 450
Loss on disposal /write-off of items of HE MEEE - BERKR
property, plant and equipment, net RBEE 2 B8 ) PR ? 385 18
Write-off of deposits B 2 Q 17 582
Provision/(write-back of provision) for obsolete PREE{Z 5 s E 38[o] » ;2%8
inventories, net Q 54,372 (12,665)
Write-back of impairment FEUR B 53 BR A B A
of trade receivables, net FRE Q (981) (4,831)
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERREERE ? 47,608 -
Changes in fair value of investment properties KEYERNTEES) 6 5,618 4,091
305,296 321,549
Decrease/(increase) in inventories =F&RL 7 (1En) 159,392 (3,322)
Decrease in frade receivables FEU B 5 BR 7R 13,735 257
Decrease in prepayments, FEfTFRIE ~ 28 R HA AU
deposits and other receivables FRIE R 22,070 8,799
Decrease in frade payables BB R ERFURD (17,132) (72,319)
Decrease in other payables and accruals HAth eI TR IB K FE st =R E R L (15,994) (2,707)
Decrease in deferred liabilities EEEERD (414) (1,831)
Cash generated from operations KESIRE 466,953 250,426
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REIFBFER - 2,131
Overseas taxes paid BEfTEIMIE (28,936) (63,150)
Net cash flows from operating activities RSB IRERAFE 438,017 189,407
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020 H#E_—_E_F&H&+_A=+—HIEE
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

2020 2019
—EF —ENEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HifaE FHET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEZHZRERE
Interest received [=1elhst 4,519 1,543
Purchases of items of property, BEME - BERREEE
plant and equipment 16 (35,786) (114,690
Proceeds from disposal of itfems of HEYE « BEMREER
property, plant and equipment Z Frigaia 161 909
Increase in rightof-use assets {EFAREE AN (265) (2,139)
Net cash flows used in investing acfivities BB T IR R S5 (31,371) (114,383)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  RiEEEhZIRERE
New bank borrowings HrigsR{T (&R 62,000 512,091
Repayment of bank borrowings EIERITER (155,764) (380,587
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZAE (92,613) (92,744)
Dividends paid ENMkRE 14 (12,672) (38,017)
Inferest paid [SENEDS (20,836) (27,518
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEE IR R PR (219,885) (26,775)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HERREZEEMZ
EQUIVALENTS 1 hnFER 186,761 48,249
Cash and cash equivalents at FZRERIREEEY
beginning of year 200,230 158,414
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExREH 8 BER
changes, net 38,158 6,433)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAERFEEEN
AT END OF YEAR 425,149 200,230
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERREEEWERZ AR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances HE KIB1T4 23 245,729 104,549
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity  FAEEARFREIEEE A/
of less than three months when acquired =B 2 ERIFERER 23 179,420 95,681
Cash and cash equivalents as stated meRERERMMY
in the consolidated statement of cash flows B RIBES%EY 425,149 200,230




Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006 under the
Companies Llaw, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and the principal place of
business of the Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre I,
200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal acfivities of the subsidiaries are set out in nofe 38 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature

of the Group's principal acfivities during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Harmonious World Llimited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), which is
considered by the directors as the Company’s ultimate holding

company.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statfements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand [HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

B ER
KABIR ZEEARENB L HRERASH
EFEBRNEE(—AAN—FEF= BixE
RIEST) RHESEEFMMRIIAERREERA
8] o AN BB BRIt HE 2 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands > TiAA B8 FE
EEEMM AT BN AR AREDE 2005%F
fRPLZHA/ & -

TRBNEBERAHREEZER - BB AT
NEEXEBF BRI BREWEE IS - FRE
EENIBEBUENRENES o

K ‘A 8] A Harmonious World Limited B9 Bff /8 A
&) » Harmonious World limited R EBRE X EEE
TEBREZHES ) FMAIL EERA
Harmonious World Limited 2 2</A Bl B R 4RI /E
NCIIG

2.1 255k

ZEMHREBRIBEBGAM AT EMGNES
MHREER (EBMBREEL)) (BIEFR
BEEBMHRGER  BBESHER (RS
stER) Ri2 i) - BB AR EHRAKREE
NENFGIIRERTE - ZEUBBRRRBELNL
FERR > EREMEZERATEFE - 55
BiERRSN  ZEMBRERLGBTTZY) FAAE
ETIRBEERTAT T (T#T) °
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (confinved

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred fo as the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an
enfity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those refurns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to

direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumsfances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
[c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue fo be consolidated

until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
confrolling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling inferests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating fo fransactions between

members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.1 2H| Lt )

GEEE
REVBREBEARDRAENB AR (KB
AEH)BE_Z - 2F+-A=+—HIL
FEMNMHREK - WEASRK AT EENE
BTG ER (BEEETER) - E4EEY
PEREANREBNIIRRARERHIZR
BHUREZBRRENEHNE (WEAEH
BETRAEENUTERENRIBRESVE
FHER) B ZE DR > BIEISHERIHE

HAATERABEER D NREHERAZH
REZFAALER BIER > A AEENFTEER
DHEAHRERSRNENREEE—VERE
BRIER 85

() HERERRHMSRFAANSOZH

b) EMESHNZHFTEEERN ; K
(c) FTEENKREEFRETREE -

BB~ B B R IR B M B SRR SR R AR
AR —HNEHERREH - WBABNEES
FEBBSEFEEAERGHE  EEZE
EHERMAILLE -

B REMEER DR AR D RBEINAE
BEBRBEEA - IEEERREREERE
&~ i~ WA~ THURBEREBRE AT
ZERGAMNREREINFEIRERTEH
Y o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (confined)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership inferest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity fransaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, [ii) the
carrying amount of any non-comroHing interest and (jii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
refained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in the consolidated
income statement. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the
consolidated income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly

disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for

the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions (early adopted|

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

2.1 2H| L )

ZREE B
HEBRIEN R it = Ei s R E R —

REHR - WMBLABEAEEDNEE (L&
KAL) > IRASRE S (FREmAL S o

HAERAEWBRBBESE  FRGREIR
MmAKIEER()NBRBENEE (BEHE) k
BE - (iMfERIFERE DA BREE & (i) 5T A
M RFTERZLR ; WH (| WELERNA
FEE - |EARERENAFEERME
I EERNEERIEE - ZEBF AT EM
e WA S ERFER » RiHE
EEERLERFEENSERERNERE
EBMNRELE WG RAFRE EF) o

2.2 Gt BOR S B) K 8

FEEERAEENMBREREREN_-F
— \FBRESERRU T IEST B/
BIREZER o

BEMBREER FEHEE
% 35ERYIERT
EBMERSER FIEBE 2
Fo5% - HEGHER
FIORREEMBRS
ZRE 7 RAERT
BEMBREER H Covid- 19 BB 1ERT
5 165ER9EST BT EE (RFHRR)
EREFERE 1 58 EAMHES
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continved)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS @, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

which are not relevant to the preparation of the Group's financial

statements, the nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(a)

(b)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
"Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive sef of concepts
for financial reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance fo all parties to
understand and interpret the standards. The Conceptual
Framework includes new chapters on measurement and
reporting financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies
the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty
in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override
the concepts or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the financial

position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of acfivities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute fo the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of oufputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance fo assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
fo transactions or other events that occurred on or affer |
January 2020. The amendments did not have any impact on

the financial position and performance of the Group.

2.2 5HBURBE R E @

BESHBREENEOR  EERHEAE
30 R E BB ERIE 7 RV IETER
FEEPBREENI 0 —F—/\EHBRE
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(b)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continved)

(c)

Amendment fo HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect nof to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; [ii) any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2021
fo other terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment is
1 June 2020

with earlier application permitted and shall be applied

; and (iii) there is no substantive change
effective for annual periods beginning on or affer
refrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly
lease payments for the leases of the Group's office premises
and sfores have been reduced or waived by the lessors as a
result of the Covid-19 pandemic and there are no other
changes to the terms of the leases. The Group has early
adopted the amendment on 1 January 2020 and elected not to
apply lease modification accounting for all rent concessions
granted by the lessors as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic
during the year ended 31 December 2020. Accordingly, a
reduction in the lease payments arising from the rent
concessions of HK$8,590,000 has been accounted for as a
variable lease payment by derecognising part of the lease
liabilities and crediting to income statement for the year ended

31 December 2020.

2.2 5HBURBE R E @

(c)

SEUBEIREERE 1 6ENET A EM
ANRE—EEEATHERE A A EE
FCovid- 1 9B IBEMNERERELENAE
HRAERAEEBRGTERE - 28R
HTHEE A AEERR Covid19%I1EE
BEgEREENHELER AEZ()AE
RN EEERERBREN > MK
ERNAEBREREEEHINEEREX
KR > R BREBEFFINEERE
(i) AEN RN EARIEEFER HHEI
ABTET—FA=THHZRRER ;
Be [iii) FE B BY EL AR S0 B I 14 I R B B
o zBII RN EIEFA—HIuZ
BRBNEERBBHAER » AR
PHER °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (continved)

(d)  Amendmenfs to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition sfates that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected fo influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the

financial position and performance of the Group.

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

Amendments fo HKFRS 3 Reference fo the Conceptual Fromework?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Inferest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2!
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

2.2 5HBURBE R E @

(d) FBEBESEREFEREBEERES
EHETREEZMRBNER  MES
RE » REISIETESHRIR © 58wl
EREERTEERENYHBRENT
EEAEENZEVHRRIELHINRE -
AZEREREEN - ZFEBIIRA
BEMFECRIE SRV BE SR E W
EFRE o ZFEIT AR RERNIT
KRR IRBREREATE o

2.3 TR AT 0 AR A 300 5 T8 A
il
A S B AR L 5 ARSI A DL T B %548
R AT AT B BRI A o

ERMBREENEIR SR
)
ERMBREENEOR.  AEEEYE - 528

BAGHERFON
BANBREENET S
BYEST  BRRIBRAZER
FAKREEMHRE LR
F16%

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments fo HKAS 1
Amendments fo HKAS 16

Amendments fo HKAS 37

Annual Improvements fo

HKFRSs 2018-2020

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts®®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-currenf>

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Infended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS T, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

g As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Inferprefation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion.

& As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS @ for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be

applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended fo replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework fo defermine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC}Hnt 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(IFRICHRt 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition af the acquisition date. The Group expecis fo
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisiion date is on or affer the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of

transition.

2.3 A A H g R 2 500 75 38 S

s N )

‘ K- ——F—A—HB 2 RRHBNEERRE

2

? RIB- —F—A—HRZERIENEERR™
¢

? RIZEZ=F—A— B ERIENEEHR™
£

4 i8R RE H SR I A2 R B A - BRI R4

s HESBEERE 1 BB > BERES
SSEMBREEZESY] — BANDEHEZER
EEGEAPEHERN T _ZE+AEHE
5] MTEtEs L EARECS o BAGmIEmoR s o

© HER =2 -2 F +ARMNEBMBREE
AISE1798BIMES] - EBMBRELERE 4958
EHEST LUER B R SR BIHAIR - BEFREA
A _F_=F—A—HAZARRNEER"
EREEEEREORMIFEBUHBRS
ZERISE QSR ©

TXMRERER R S E BN EEHBREE
RUBYIE— S5 R o

BBV BREEEIRMNETSEUR T
—\ERRB BN ER S ERRABE

AR 2 BB R SERTM A EERE

EHERNE - ZFEITEEBMBREE
A5 3SR N A RSB RRUBIBISMBT » SR ERE
BDERSERUAEAEBHNEENESE - &%
BISMERRE > RN BE B G ERE 375
HEB (BERMBREREEZET) —2EF2)
RHEEANEERNARE (HEREHGH
PBUELEMIFRE)  BRAEEBEVBRSE
RIE3RNERE DS EEBGERE I
RHEB (AEVHRE2RBEEE) —2B5
21 SEMIEBESHELR o thSh » ZFETRBFHA
BEENTEERN I HRES - AEEFEHR
RAIB T __F—RA—BERMZFET -
MR ZEETERRBERREERERBM
SRS EBNEBSH  HAEERBER

BARREETZE -

Q3LIWIT SINIATOH AdEW1

&P
)|

{7

AR

>



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong 2.3 C A 8 g AR B W RS

ERBERARE

i A

#

Z

9
o)

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS @, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (RFR). The Phase 2
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change
is a direct consequence of the inferest rafe benchmark reform and the
new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent fo the previous basis immediately preceding the change. In
addition, the amendments permit changes required by the interest rafe
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued.
Any gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and
recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a
temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the
hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity fo disclose additional
information fo enable users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
and shall be applied refrospectively, but entities are not required to

restate the comparative information.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated
in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate as at 31 December 2020. If the interest rates of these
borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will
apply this practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings when the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and
expects that no significant modification gain or loss will arise as a

result of applying the amendments fo these changes.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity's right to defer setflement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the enfity has a right to defer
setflement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it
complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a liability
is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise ifs right fo
defer seftlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2023 and shall be applied refrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an itfem of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condifion necessary for it fo be capable of operafing in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied refrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entfity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly fo the contract. Costs
that relate directly fo a confract include both the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
le.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs|. General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2022 and shall be applied fo contracts for which an entity
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong 2.3 C A 8 g AR B W RS

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

Annual Improvements fo HKFRSs 2018-2020 sefs out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected fo be
applicable fo the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9@ Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other's behalf. An entity applies the amendment fo
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or affer
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to

have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

J HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potfential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying
HKFRS 16.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity inferests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether fo measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership inferests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assefs in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured af fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that fogether significantly contribute to the ability fo

create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the

separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity inferest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any

resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income sfatement.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured

and subsequent setflement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
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Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continved)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, affer reassessment, recognised in the income statfement

as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment festing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assefs or liabilities of the Group are

assigned fo those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment

loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Fair VUlUG measurement

The Group measures its investment properties af fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received fo sell an asset or paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly
fransaction between market participants af the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
fransaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best inferest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes info account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in ifs highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 FEFGHBORME @)

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continved)

All assefs and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities

level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether fransfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole| at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:

(al

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one enfity is an associafe or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entfity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same

third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
enfity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post—empb\/ment benefit p|on for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related fo
the Group;

the entity is confrolled or jointly confrolled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services fo the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
festing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and investment properties), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An assef's recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assefs or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating

unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
assel exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using
a prefax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged fo the income statement in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the

impaired assefs.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that assef, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an itfem of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the

asset fo its working condition and location for ifs intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put info operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the assef as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required fo be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with

specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the assef revaluation reserve. If the total of this
reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis,
the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited fo the income statement to
the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred fo retained profits as a

movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rafes used for this

purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 3.3%

4.5% to 20%
10% to 20%
10% to 20%
20% to 25%

leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and equipment under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct cosfs of construction during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including fransaction costs.
Subsequent fo initial recognition, investment properties are stated af
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which

they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the

refirement or disposal.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Other asset

Other asset is the right to receive the new properties under a
relocation arrangement, further details of which are given in note 19
to the financial statements. Such asset, being the consideration to be
received upon disposal of the original properties under the relocation
arrangement, is initially recognised at its fair value. Subsequent to the
initial recognition, other asset is stated at cost less any impairment

losses.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive

income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assefs at initial recognition depends on
the financial assef's confractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at ifs fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out

for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs fo give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest ["SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured

at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model defermines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period

generally established by regulation or convention in the markefplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assefs at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial

position) when:
e the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has fransferred its rights fo receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
[b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor refained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues fo recognise the transferred
asset o the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
fransferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Group could be required fo repay.
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Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or
loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the confractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects fo receive, discounted af an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit

enhancements that are infegral fo the confractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, EClLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the

exposure, irrespective of the fiming of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. VWhen making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking

information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering

the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets af amortised cost is subject fo impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECls except for trade receivables and contract
assefs which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECls

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not creditimpaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured ot an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are creditimpaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated creditimpaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal fo lifefime

ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adijusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECls at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on ifs historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as ifs accounting policy fo
adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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Tﬁ Policies (continued)

= Financial liabilities =R

o Initial recognition and measurement NPHI Rt E

t{i Financial liabilities are classified, af initial recognition, as financial TREE 5 RYRRERE > RERBRNES
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an

effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially af fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly

attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised costs (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interestbearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income sfatement when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective inferest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an infegral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective inferest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the ferms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly aftributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance defermined in accordance with the policy as set out in
"Impairment of financial assets”; and {ii) the amount initially recognised

less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

BREmRUATEIRZEHEE BNk
BE  BARIE > HDEREEABRETZ
HHTEZHTHETA (RBERER °

FRE B aEVBRZA T ERER  EER
AR FEATRIA > E‘JDDL@E?;J?%TEQ%EEZIS

=]
oo ©

®EE
PHEEENRESTEEARE DR 1T ¢

BEBHENATIRZEMAR (ERKER)
RAEHERE » sTREMRERBRUBRR
;éiﬂ%‘%ﬁﬁ)ﬁKquE’ MIT RN BT A E
» RIZ AT IR - EREERER A EREER
%UY%@% B2 W RESIEE I U REESD o

B AT AR B EREENEMFTRIEE
RAER BB RBER DN E R ME
BRI AR KPR E A o

RBEREN

REMATEHZ MEERENABENBEEED
ARBERBHE TR Z RN FHARMI TR > MA
SAFRBEBUBEEREEAMKERLAZS
Ko MBERERENINTREQNTERIAS
& WHEHZEEREZEEGZ R ZERE
HERE o« RYIFTHRE  AEERUTMEZ
REE2EMFEREN (|RETeMEE
BUELIFT SR E M TEHAE B AR EE 5 R (i)
MRz 23R (ER) RetERBRA S
RH o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

W 55 ¥ 2% B Bk ()

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the income sfafement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
after making due allowances for obsolefe or slow-moving items. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on the estimated selling prices less any estimated costs

fo be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Lease

S

The Group assesses at confract inception whether a confract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or confains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

Group

as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach

for aill
assets.
and i

assefs.

(a)

leases, except for shortterm leases and leases of low-value
The Group recognises lease liabilities o make lease payments

ghtof-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

Right-of-use assets

Rightofuse assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assefs includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct cosfs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement dafe less any lease
incentives received. Rightof-use assets are depreciated on a
straightline basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the

estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

45 10 50 years
46 1o 50 years
2 to 11 years

Lleasehold land
Lland
Buildings

If ownership of the leased asset transfers o the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated

useful life of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

lease liabilities are recognised af the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably cerfain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option fo terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rafe are recognised as an expense in the period in which the

event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses ifs incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilifies is increased o reflect the accretion of inferest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments [e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment

of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the shortferm lease recognition exemption fo
its shortferm leases of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assels fo leases of office equipment and laptop computers that

are considered to be of low value.

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a

lease-by-lease basis.

lease payments on shortterm leases and leases of low-value
assefs are recognised as an expense on a straightline basis

over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an

operating lease or a finance lease.

leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a confract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straightline basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due fo ifs
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added fo the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
renfal income. Contingent renfs are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are eamed.

leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are accounted for as

finance leases.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an infegral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which

are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, consfruction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of fime to gef ready for their infended use or sale,
are capifalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing cosfs ceases when the assefs are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
tfemporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other costs that an
enfity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive] has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounﬂng is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required fo settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the

passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income fax relating fo
items recognised outside the income sfafement is recognised either in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assefs and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
fo be recovered from or paid fo the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates [and fax lows) that have been enacted or subsfantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interprefations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the

Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a fransaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
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that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable [ o

investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of

the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable

future.
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Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused fax losses can be utilised, except:

ERVA-IRER:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible femporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a fransaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed af the end of
each reporting period and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised fo the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available o allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected fo apply fo the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is seffled, based on tax rafes (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes assets and deferred
tax liabilities relafe fo income faxes levied by the same taxation
oufhority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or fo realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax

liabilities or assets are expected to be sefiled or recovered.

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China is subject to a withholding tax under the prevailing
tax rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 FEFGHBORME @)

Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of

U 5%
REER SN
REZFP SN & MR E S R

Q3LIWIT SINIATOH AdEW1

goods or services is fransferred to the customers at an amount that ERPEED > HEBRRAEETERMAHR
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in ZEEmBMBMBIEESZAE 111

exchange for those goods or services.

hais
When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the EENTHNAEaERZE8E  M5tRED ;g
amount of consideration is esfimated to which the Group will be ERATNERMEEEMARBEERMAE =
entifled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the B o BN EESNRBERGTLRA%R éi
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at confract inception BEJENENERTARERZERHBR > M g
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue MR RS EE A AR SE R B A W w13 i

reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services fo the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured af the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer atf contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the inferest expense
accrefed on the contract liability under the effective inferest method.
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For a contract where the period between the payment by the customer IR EEERS | SR BITHRE A ETRE o
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,

the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant

financing component, using the pracfical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of goods HEEmD

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the assef is fransferred to the customer, generally on delivery

of the goods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a fime proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a

rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow fo the Group and the

amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group fransfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

(i.e., transfer control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income sfatement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the infangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its infention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and the ability to
measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is

expensed when incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure incurred in
the construction cost of infrastructure projects, are recognised at their
fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
sysfematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is infended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset, the
fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
released fo the income statement by way of a reduced depreciation

charge.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share opfion scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services as

consideration for equity insfruments (“Equity-settled Transactions”).

The cost of Equitysetiled Transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value af the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model,
further details of which are given in note 31 to the financial

statements.

The cost of Equity-Seftled Transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for Equity-Setiled
Transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Croup's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised

as af the beginning and end of that period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continved)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not faken info
account when defermining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered fo be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair
value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award

unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the fransactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that

all other performance and/or service conditions are satfisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial fo the

employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-seffled award is cancelled, it is freafed as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any
award where non-esting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are freated as if they were a modification of the original

award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of eamings per share.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
refirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of these
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer confributions vest fully with the employees when
confributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a cenfral pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required fo confribute certain percentages of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presenfed in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the fransactions. Monetfary assefs and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are franslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling af the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on sefflement or translation of monetary

ifems are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary ifems that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are franslafed using the exchange rafes at the dates
of the inifial transactions. Non-monetary ifems measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
franslation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item [i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or income
statement is also recognised in other comprehensive income or income

statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on inifial recognition of the related
assef, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetfary
asset or non-monefary liability relating fo an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monefary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group defermines the fransaction date for

each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their income statements are
franslated into Hong Kong dollars af the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign

operation is recognised in the income sfafement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated info Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment fo the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected

in the future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (continved)
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the ferms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments not amounting fo substantially all the fair value of the
commercial property, that it refains substantially all the significant risks
and rewards idenfical fo ownership of these properties which are

leased out and account for the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held fo earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a

property does not qualify as an investment property.
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (confinved)

Judgements (continued)

Income fax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences as at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their camying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

As explained in note 28 fo the financial statements, withholding tax is
levied on dividends to be distributed by subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008. Deferred tax is provided, at the applicable withholding tax
rate, on the undistributed eamings of the Group's PRC subsidiaries
that would be distributed to their respective holding companies outside

Mainland China in the foreseeable future.

The Group's investment properties at fair value in Mainland China are
all held to eamn rental income and/or for capital appreciation and
they are considered to be held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Accordingly, deferred tax on the Group's investment properties
at fair value is measured fo reflect the tax consequences of recovering

the carrying amounts of the investment properties through use.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (continved)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
esfimation uncertainty atf the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

described below.

Fair value estimation of investment properties
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of sources,

including:
(@)  independent valuations;

(b)  current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location [or subject to different leases or

other contracts), adjusted fo reflect those differences;

[c)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markefs, with
adjustments fo reflect any changes in economic conditions since

the dates of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(d)  discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts, and (where possible) from external
evidence such as current market rates for similar properties in
the same location and condition, and using discount rates that
reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the

amount and timing of cash flows.

Further defails, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 17 to the

financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (confinved)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECls for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geographical region and customer type). The provision matrix
is inifially based on the Group's hisforical observed default rates. The
Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forword-|oo|<ing information. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the

forward-ooking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is disclosed in nofe

21 to the financial statements.

Inventory provision

The Group manufactures and sells goods and is subject fo changing
consumer demands and fashion trends. As a result, it is necessary to
consider the recoverability of the cost of inventories and the associated
provision required. When calculating the inventory provision,
management considers the nature and condition of inventories, as
well as applying assumptions around anticipated marketability of

finished goods and the future usage of raw materials.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily defermine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) fo
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have fo pay to borrow over a similar ferm, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary fo obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR
therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into finoncing transactions) or when it
needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs [such
as market interest rafes) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rafing).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continved)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than Other Asset)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all nonfinancial assefs (including the rightof-use assets) at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds ifs recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to

calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment assessment of Other Asset (as defined in note 19)

As disclosed in note 19, Other Asset is the right to receive the new
properties and is sfated at cost less any impairment losses. Under the
annual impairment festing, an impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less cosfs of disposal and
its value in use. The Group conducted the impairment assessment by
comparing the net carrying amount of Other Asset with ifs fair value
as defermined based on the valuation performed by independent
professionally qualified valuers and a method of valuation which
involved certain assumptions, including gross unit rate per square
metre. The assumptions used in the valuation have involved significant

management judgement.
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Segment Information 4.

The Group's primary operating segment is the manufacture and sale
of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear, sleepwear and others. Since
this is the only operating segment of the Group, no further analysis
thereof is presented. In determining the Group's geographical
information, the revenue information is based on the locations of the
customers, and the total non-current asset information, other than

deferred tax assets, is based on the locations of the assets.

Mainland China Hong Kong
REIARE &
2020 2019 2020

“ECBE T NE ZEC®E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T T FET

Continued)

5 kO
FERZTREENMERLTHE -~ E
N BERREMZBERIHE - EEﬁéJtl:?%ZIS%
BEzW—KE0H RUEZINE—F 2D
i o REAEBZ S BRI > W BERTHIZ
ZRFIEMAER > BIFRBEE (BIEREA
BEMRSIN BRHEEEFTEt A ERE o

Others Total
Hith it
2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ZZ-NE ZEZFE “T-NE ZEIEFE T-NE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FET TET F#T TET

Revenue from external SRER Z W

customers 1,595,581 2,198,922 43,020 62,730 11,882 5215 1,650,483 2,266,867
Non-current assefs ERBEE 2,106,463 2,128,631 104,631 115,066 - - 2,211,094 2,243,697
Capital expenditure incurred FRNERHZ

during the year 36,948 113,399 38 1,297 - - 36,986 114,696

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, as no revenue
from sales to any cusfomer of the Group has individually accounted
for over 10% of the Group's total revenue, no information about major
cusfomers is presented under HKFRS 8.

Revenue

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

HE-® NFR-B-BFIA=+—H
IR » A E R P 2 85 8
[ERIE A L MBI 10% L L - I KARES
BUBSREENE RIS BIBEL WAL o

Wi

WADHTIT :
2020 2019
—EEF “E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Revenue from contracts with customers HEHEE S

Sale of goods HESm

1,650,483 2,266,867
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the current reporting period that was included in contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and

recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous

5. Revenue (continued) 5. “&ﬁ (#)
Revenue from contracts with customers KEER GO E
Disaggregated revenue information ) DERZER
2020 2019
HK$ ‘000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Business activities ¥8E
Concessionary counters THESE 1,025,801 1,593,993
Retail stores TEE 177,445 252,662
Internet and wholesale HH I E Rt as 435,355 414,997
Original design manufacturer (“ODM”| RER st BliER 11,882 5,215
1,650,483 2,266,867
Brands mhg
Embry Form ZHTFS 764,648 1,032,245
Fandecie INEE 375,081 558,942
Others Hith 498,872 670,465
ODM products ODME & 11,882 5,215
1,650,483 2,266,867
Products Em
Lingerie R 1,435,914 1,982,720
Sleepwear BELC 156,989 180,244
Swimwear KT 38,836 88,705
ODM products ODM E & 11,882 5,215
Other products HhEm 6,862 9,983
1,650,483 2,266,867
The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in TRETARSHNEDRAEZE

BREERSHINGHNEET  LER
LEEROFRBETNEROSEE

periods:
2020 2019
—E-FH T—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue recognised that was included in ERYEeEEaNasEH
contract liabilities at the beginning of FTRESRBIUA -
the reporting period:
Sale of goods HESMm 29,334 42,875
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5. Revenue (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continved)

(ii)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sale of goods

The Group sells goods directly to retail customers via refail
stores, concessionary counters and internet. The performonce
obligation is satisfied when the product is transferred to the
cusfomers upon delivery of goods. Payment of the fransaction
price is due immediately when the customers purchase the
goods. The payment is usually seffled in cash or using credit

cards.

The Group also sells goods fo wholesalers. The performance
obligation is safisfied when control of the products has been
fransferred, being when the products are delivered fo the
wholesalers and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the wholesaler's acceptance of the products. The
payment is generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers, from delivery, except for
certain wholesalers, where payment in advance is normally

required.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) are not disclosed in the notes to the financial
statfements because all the remaining performance obligations
in relation fo the sale of goods are a part of contracts that have

an original expected duration of one year or less.
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6. Other Income and Gains, Net

6. LA A B Wedi 0 {5

2020 2019
—ECEF —E2—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE7T
Other income Hthig A
Subsidy income™* THRGUA 37,448 29,355
Gross rental income from investment s d =LY/ <‘<M$HEE’]
property operating leases: U ALEER
Other lease payments, including HMAEMIE - BFEENEA
fixed payments 16,513 14,805
Variable lease payments that do not REURI TS S ZEH
depend on an index or a rate AT ERIE 383 530
Bank inferest income IRITFEUWA 4,519 1,543
Interest accretion on non-current receivables JEENHARE USRI R A 238 0 1,211 1,949
Gain on termination of leases #LIFFRE W 460 -
Others Hith 5,033 5918
65,567 54,100
Gains/(losses), net s (38%K) > BEE
Foreign exchange differences, net EREE $ 11,536 (3,720)
Changes in fair value of investment REMENTEES (1)
properties (note 17) (5,618) 4,091)
5,918 (7,811)
71,485 46,289

*

There are no untfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this income.

* MW A W TS RAF I RIERLZ (R T ARE R ©
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Other Expenses 7. HAWPBI
2020 2019
i gt 23 —FhE
HK'$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FHT
Charitable donation BERT 4,903 5,324
Loss on disposal /write-off of items of HE EEYIE ~ BBk
property, plant and equipment, net RBIEEEE 0 FEE 385 18
Write-off of deposits B 7 MEY 17 582
Employee termination benefits ETERpES 29,546 =
34,851 5,924
Finance Costs 8. MHE A
2020 2019
—w —_—= E <_j-|.:ﬂ5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Inferest on bank loans fETﬂE E )= 14,849 19,617
Interest on lease liabilities EaE6EMNE 5,987 7,901
Finance costs incurred 48 oh B B 2 20,836 27,518
less: Inferest capitalised (nofe 16) B BARERR (F5E 16) (1,200) -
19,636 27,518
The capitalised interest rate applied to funds borrowed and used for BET_THFA+_A=+—HLFE > AR
the development of construction in progress is 2.9% per annum for the TRIZBZERMEENZER2.9%

year ended 31 December 2020.
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31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

9. Profit Before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

9. BB

H

FEBZBFRENEF BN GHA) ¢

2020 2019
—EITHE “E-NF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Cost of inventories sold* BEFEEREA* 467,996 504,138
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment EESEITE 76,585 79219
Depreciation of rightof-use assets EREEEZITE 96,305 105,384
loss/(gain) on termination of leases KIFE 8% (k&) (460) 450
lease payments not included in the At AR EaENEERIE
measurement of lease liabilities (note 18(c)) (H1aE 18(c)) 272,353 469,354
Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors HEHFE AR Covid- 192 1EARRERY
HEER (8,590) -
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EEEFHAE (FEEES
directors” and chief executive’s BATBUERE I — AaE10) ¢
remuneration — nofe 10):
Wages and salaries TERFE 425,542 651,613
Provision/ (write-back of provision) for RHRG S EE
long service payments (B EREE) 377 (2,042)
Refirement benefit scheme contributions BRREFET B RN 19,282 63,045
Employee termination benefits BT R mES 29,546 -
Equity-seftled share option expense s E B R 12 -
474,759 /712,616
Auditor’s remuneration TZEREMBN = 2,488 2,838
Advertising and counter decoration expenses [& &S AR AL AR R 57,343 147,285
Provision/ (write-back of provision) for obsolete FREETZ S M ($8[o]) - 348
invenfories, net 54,372 [12,665)
Write-off of deposits a2 E 17 582
Write-back of impairment of trade receivables, FEUR B S BR TR BClR(E » /358 *
net* * (981) (4,831)
Impairment of rightof-use assets ERESERE 47,608 =
Research and development expenditure e 1,747 3,410
Loss on disposal /write-off of items of HE MIEYE ~ BB RRHE
property, plant and equipment, net 158 > 518 > S$4E 385 18
Foreign exchange differences, net ERER > P (11,536) 3,720
Gross and net rental income AWM AAREE R FEE (16,896) [15,335)
Changes in fair value of investment properties KEMENTEES) 5,618 4,091
Bank interest income SRITAIE WA (4,519) (1,543]
Interest accretion on non-current receivables IERBIFE IR IERIF 2 (1,211) (1,949)

* The cost of inventories sold for the year included HK$ 145,630,000 *
(2019: HK$ 167,803,000 relating to staff costs, depreciation of
manufacturing facilities and the provision/|write-back of provision) for
obsolefe inventories, which is also included in the respective fotal

amounts disclosed above for each type of expenses.

* &

“Administrative expenses” on the face of the consolidated income

statement.

Write-back of impairment of trade receivables, net, is included in A

BEFERABIFESTHEA RISRENER
REEFZE#E < (FE]) - F8E# 145,630,000
B (ZE—N4F:167,803,000&7T) - H
BEMBEETR BACA LKL #EE 2 S AA1ARARESE 1 o

FEW B AR BBl B E - JFRRE ST AR E W
XA [TTE 2 A
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant fo the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “listing

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

10. 5 3 B 17 B HGH

RIEEBM AR ZAARAR (TH3ZFT)) 5855
EHRRTEFRRA ) - BEBREKROSE
383(1)(a), (b, ()R (ffF » URAE (REES

Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f] of the Hong Kong FEERD) BB 2 ST BT ¢
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors| Regulation, is as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —Z2—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Fees wE 1,074 1,074
Other emoluments: Hth & :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind S N EEEEYRE 9,630 12,074
Bonuses* TE4T > - 2,053
Equity-setiled share option expense B A H AR AR 2 3 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREF T BIHRR 54 54
10,761 15,255

Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments
which are determined as a percentage of the profit affer tax of the
Group.

During the vyear, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services fo the Group, under the share option scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements. The fair value of the share options granted during
the current year, which has been recognised in the income statement
over the vesfing period, was defermined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration

disclosures.

* KRERTEFBEEIRZEIEAL » MIEALIEAR
Rtz 5 [ S5 7R 12 i FII B9 —E B 77 LEEE ©

FR o ETEFERAERRHERFMREE
ARBREFBERBRE  E—PFBEAN
MBI RNFES) - AEERHHBRENAT
B (ERBBINERmRARESD) HREEHB
HEE > Mt ATEEMHRENVSECEE
EXFriREBVEF RATEAREFHEN A o
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10.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continved)

101 R ATBAREH M

2020 ZETHF
Salaries, Equity- Retirement
130 allowances setfled benefit
£ and benefits share option scheme Total
z Fees in kind Bonuses expenses  contribufions  remuneration
B E i
§ BR g iy el
S ik BHE AL FERRAERIS SRR |
= HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
3 F#ET Fi#ET F#T FET FET F#Er
Execufive dlrectors: HITEE:
Mr. Cheng Man Tai EERITE - 2,809 - 1 18 2,828
Madam Ngok Ming Chu =/ S - 2,952 - 1 18 2971
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* [EE== S - 2,396 - 1 18 2415
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen BE2ELE - 567 - - - 567
Ms. Llu Qun ERYT - 906 - - - 906
- 9,630 - 3 54 9,687
Independlent nonexecutive BUFHTES .
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki EERE 358 - - - - 358
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung i)y docta 358 - - - - 358
Prof. lee T. S. FREYE 358 - - - - 358
1,074 - - - - 1,074
1,074 9,630 - 3 54 10,761
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31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

10.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (continved)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

10 H R ATBUAREH M

2019 —E—hE
Salaries, Refirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses confributions remuneration
e
R R RIRER
e B &= TE4r HEIEEN FEa)|
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FET FEr FET
Executive diirectors: HITEE .
Mr. Cheng Man Tai RS E - 3,340 44 18 3,402
Madam Ngok Ming Chu ERB L = 4,088 765 18 4,871
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza* ME L - 2,884 773 18 3,675
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen mE2EE - 646 159 - 805
Ms. Lu Qun BERTL = 1,116 312 - 1,428
- 12,074 2,053 54 14,181
Independent nonexecutive directors: B IEHITESE :
Mr. Lau Siu Ki REELE 358 - - - 358
Mr. Llee Kwan Hung IR E 358 - - - 358
Prof. lee T. S. EREHIE 358 - - - 358
1,074 - - - 1,074
1,074 12,074 2,053 54 15,255
5 Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza, a director of the Company, is also the chief & KRB EFBEEL LIEFR N B Z1TEAE
executive officer of the Company. # o
During the year ended 31 December 2020, in response fo the RBEETZ"TF+"RB=+—HILFE R

adverse impact caused by the outbreak of Covid-19, the Group
implemented an array of cost control measures. In order to ride out the
difficult times with employees of the Group, the executive directors of
the Company voluntarily reduced their remuneration by 75% for a
three-month period from March to May 2020.

There were no arrangements under which a director or the chief
execufive waived or agreed fo waive any remuneration during the

year ended 31 December 2019

EE Covid- 19 BIREMEmzE  AEEE
T7 —ERNRAEIERER - ARETNEES
B » AR B RREHITEEBRERE /5%

W ETEF=—RE-_E-_EFLAAR=
)ﬂo
BHE_ZT—NFE+_B=1+—HIFE  1E

%%Iﬁﬂz%&ﬁ%ﬂ&:ﬁﬂM%H&Eﬁ%ﬁ@ﬂz;t
B o

1

QILIWIT SONIQT0H AdawWa

9%)

4t
<
.

f

HF

[ERVAR=Z:

1



1

ERBERARE

1

He

H

9%}

P

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

11. Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2019: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 10 fo the financial statements above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining two (2019: two) highest paid employees
who are neither directors nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

11. htmaE b N L

FREEREFALOEZSEE(CE—N
£ =8) > BHMEEDN LSRR
5108 - FNRBME (CENE  WE)
A AR EFRTHER 2 BEHRE 2 HH
BB :

2020 2019

—ECEF “E—NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FE7T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e N 2R EYF 2,393 1,812
Bonuses TE4L - 1,073
Equity-setiled share option expense IR BB RS 1 -
Refirement benefit scheme contributions BORER EHEIEHRR 99 84
2,493 2,969

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

FHENBIS LU TR 2 FEFERIFTH SRS
HESAZUMT

Number of employees

EEAH
2020 2019
ot et 5 3 —ENE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000% 7t - -
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 #&7tZE 1,500,000 # 7T 2 2
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 #&7tE 2,000,000 # 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #&7LE 2,500,000 # 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 #&7tE 3,000,000 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 #7tZE 3,500,000 % 7T - -
2 2

During the year, share options were granted to non-director and non-
chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their services to
the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosure in
nofe 31 fo the financial statements. The fair value of the share options
granted during the current year, which has been recognised in the
income sfatement over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

FR 0 FEFRIFTHBHERSHEERAE
EERMRBMERBRE  E—SFBEHN
BRI BIIRERN - REEFMIRWE
RHEMATE (BERNREBIHREWmRESR) b
REHBRETE > MAFEEMBRERAAEER
Bt A LMIFEERIFITHRERSHEEN
WEEA o
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12. Income Tax 12 i {45 =
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group R A EE R E R AL T B E L AIEERIR S
did not generate any assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during wA o I ESHER BN EREE (T2 =
the year (2019: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have ) o Hthith A ERREFN 2 MIBERAK E
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the regions in which ERKEESRME 2 BRIREE o =
the Group operates. =

133
2020 2019
it et 23 —FhE Q}
HK$’000 HK$'000 i
FHT FHT o
Current — Mainland China BIEARRTE — FRE A fE g
Charge for the year FNIRIE 23,062 50,287 >
Deferred (note 28) IRIE (FifaE 28) 281 (5,334) a
Tofal tax charge for the year FEZERES T 23,343 44,953
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable o profit before fax at MUAERB B RE DM E A B EMtE 2 E
the stafutory rates for the regions in which the Company and the MERFIRAa st HE 2 NERS - BEHRE
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the IS E 2 IR IER S VAR T ©
effective tax rate is as follows:
2020 2019
HK$ ‘000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before tax IR BT 20,519 125,275
Tax at the applicable rafes BREMXFERIE 6,069 34,669
Income not subject to tax BAEZRIRNZ WA (5,085) (3,774)
Expenses not deductible for tax RAHMR 2 BE 14,658 4,663
Tox losses utilised from previous periods ARG HIBRIERE (437) -
Tax losses not recognised REESDIRIART 8 7,645 8,186
Others Hfh 493 1,209

Tax charge af the Group's effective rate BAEBEZEBRRESNEZ
MIEZ 23,343 44,953




e

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED K

/N

f

A

Jo gL
T X

i 55 £

#

3

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

W 5

e )

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

13. Related Party Transactions

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these

13.HREBAN LS

(a)

PRz SRR EAMBMD P X5 5h -

financial statements, the Group had the following material FEERFRNAFHREALETZER
fransactions with related parties during the year: RHWH
2020 2019
Notes HK$ ‘000 HK$'000
Mzt FHET FHET
Continuing fransactions FFERS
Purchases of furniture and decoration mREATEEREUX
services for counters and shops [E# Z R S B IE AR TS
as well as different types of MR EERER
moulds from related companies (i) 8,774 16,921
Rental expenses for a warehouse KABDJEEWENEEZ
charged by a director of the Company izl b (i) 336 319
Nofes: Hiat :

(i

The purchases of fumiture and decoration services for counters and
shops as well as different types of moulds from 2 B4k F & 28k &Y
& G BFRAT (Duosiwei Metal & Plastic Products (Shenzhen)
Co., lid.) and EM 2 BAEKELEE TIZ2HERAE (Changzhou
ltd.), related
companies confrolled by Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, an executive
director of the Company, and #1 B EZ CRII) BRA &)
(Xinsiwei Industry [Shenzhen) Co.,

Duosiwei Furniture Decoration Construction Co.,

lid.), a related company
controlled by close family members of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen,
an executive director of the Company, were made according fo the
ferms similar to those offered by the Group's independent suppliers.
The balances owed fo related companies as at 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$7,097,000 (2019: HK$5,443,000) and
were unsecured, inferesHree and repayable in accordance with
normal trading terms. The amounts have been included in other
payables and accruals as at the end of the year.

(i)

DREE QBN TESBER I EFRE
FNRAEAT L BHASBHER R
) BRAT REMN 2 BHERELEM T
RERABDUREATNTERHES
HENRBAIESINEEARNEHS
# CRH) R AR BEENREFH R
MR BEIEBRFE I B B A B AR BB A
E@EBIHERFTIREZEREE o 1
TERCEF+ A=+ —HXMRER
B2 45854 7,007,000E T (ZE—N
£ 15,443,000 7T) THEKF - £ 8
R REEGNEE - ZETES
REREE BT EE MBI FIEREST
TRIE o
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13. Related Party Transactions (confined)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

[i)  The renfal expenses were charged by Madam Ngok Ming Chu,
an executive director of the Company, and determined with
reference to the then prevailing market conditions.

The above transactions constitute continuing connected
fransactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
their details are disclosed in the report of the directors.

The directors are of the opinion that the above transactions
were conducted in the ordinary course of business of the

Group.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group

13. 65BN LS @)

(0) @

Kzt : (#8)

i)  EERXDEANENTEEEREK
TWERIESE B2 TRERE ©

RiE FHRAIE 4AE > U ERZER
FHEMERS > AREFREREFER

ENINEE o

%%:m%% MR ZRRAEEAEER

IBIEFRETT ©

h) FEEFZEEASZHM

2020 2019

HKs ‘000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Short term employee benefits FEHAREEA 12,374 19,871

Postemployment benefits B 2127 189 225

Equity-setiled share option expense IR E R 3 =
Total compensation paid to SN FEEEEAS 2 EF

key management personnel 12,566 20,096

Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration

are included in note 10 fo the financial statements.

BEERTBAEFHFMBF RN M HR

RMEE10 ©
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14. Dividends 14. B8
2020 2019
k- et 23 —TAEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET TFH#ET
Dividends paid during the year: FEREHRS :
Final in respect of the BE_Z-NF+ZA=+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2019 IERAB R R AR B
— HK3.0 cents per ordinary share — BikEiER 3.08(L
[2019: Final in respect of the (CE-NE H#E_Z—\F
financial year ended 31 December 2018 +ZA=+—HItHEBFER
— HK7.0 cents per ordinary share| RE — BREREKR7.0EMW) 12,672 29,569
Inferim — Nil (2019: HK2.0 cents) REARRE — &
per ordinary share (ZE—5F 1 2.081) - 8,448
12,672 38,017
Proposed final dividend: BRKRAARS
Final — HK2.5 cents (2019: Final — HK3.0 KEAR B — ASKEZER
cents) per ordinary share 258 (CE—NEF:
KEBRE — »ER
iR 3.078L) 10,560 12,672
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of FRERKAREBREAABRERNERERR
the Company’s shareholders af the forthcoming annual general BERG LHE - ZFHMFHRRL R RRENS
meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend REARG R o

payable.
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15. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share
Attributable to Owners of the

158 22l B A N HE 16 4 B &t

M, (s 18)

Company
(a) Basic (1) EF
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on: SREARRF(BE) T EuRs
=
2020 2019
ZEZETHF “E-NE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Earnings B¥#
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the BARstESRERETR,
Company, used in the basic earnings/(loss| (F518) 2 AR EHA AFES
per share calculation wmAl (E518) (2,824) 80,322
Number of shares
& E
2020 2019
—ETHF “BNE
Shares B
Number of ordinary shares of the Company StERATERER
in issue, used in the basic earnings/(loss) R, (E518) FriRR 2
per share calculation FREBTZIEG 422,416,638 422,416,638
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) SREAREFR (B518) GEl) (0.67) 19.01
(b) Diluted (h) #3

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amount presented for the year ended 31 December 2020 in
respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options has anfi-

dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

The Group had no potentially dilufive ordinary shares in issue

during the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_ZT_TE+_RA=-+—HIEFE-
BREARBEXE Bt xFEN
BEE2SREREBEREE -

BE_T-NEF+-RA=+—HILFE"
FEBUEZTRABTEFCE LS
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. 3¢ ~ W7 Bkt
Furniture,
fixtures
leasehold ~ Plontand  and office Motor  Construction
Buildings ~improvemenis  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
il B
VRS BER  RMAEZ
¥ R s i | AE HEIR )
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TiEn FE7 FEn TEn FE7 FEn FEn
31 December 2020 ZZZ%E+2R=1+-H
At T Jonuary 2020 RZF_5F-F-H 900,654 3,690 255,315 318,512 11,763 76221 1,566,155
Additons TE - - 4,165 7,900 - 23,721 35,786
Finance costs capialised BENAER(E - - - - - 1,200 1,200
Disposals/wiiteff HE /His - - (1,299 5,305) (054) (60] (7.318)
Tronsfers 85 52,908 - 36,454 11,578 4 (100,944) -
Transfer o invesimen propeties BEERENE (Wit
[note o] (20,120) - - - - - (20,120}
Exchange realignment ERA% 55,195 - 17,273 18,605 433 14 91,520
At 31 December 2020 RZZ"EE+"A=+-H 988,637 3,690 311,908 351,290 11,546 152 1,667,223
Accumuloted depreciafion: ZiE:
At 1 Jonuary 2020 RZEZEE-R-H 111,198 3,690 90,125 21,112 10,568 - 446,693
Provided during the yeor EREE 19,139 - 21,613 35,300 533 - 76,585
Disposals/wrieof e /s - - 12) (4,870) (631) - 6,772
Transfer o invesimen propeties BEERENZ (W)
note o (309) - - - - - (309)
Exchange realignment ERAE 7,599 - 6,388 13,999 403 - 28,389
At 31 December 2020 RZZEE+"A=1+-H 137,627 3,690 116,855 275,541 10,873 - 544,586
Nt book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2020 RZB-EE+"B=1-H 851,010 - 195,053 75789 673 152 1122637
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (conined)  16.%93E ~ 5 Bk i @
Fumiture,
fixures
leasehold Plont and and offce Motor ~ Consfruction
Buldings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Totol
i #£E
&Nz BER KAz
gF £ s HE A& fRIE fat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$'000
Tén Fin Tén Tén Fién Tén Tén
31 December 2019 Z5-hE+ZBA=1-A
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 RZE-hE-R-H 800,637 3,690 200,542 27,015 12,608 166,742 1481234
Addiions HE = = 2,268 11,465 100,963 114,696
Disposals/witeoff HE /s - 229) [2,376) (753) 750) [4,110)
Trangfers & 118 454 - 55,607 15790 - (189,851) -
Transfer o invesiment properies BEERENE (o)
note o] (8,286) - - - - - (8,280)
Exchange reclignment EQA% (10,151 = 2873 (3,382) %0] (883) (17,379
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE+ZR=1-A 900,654 3,690 255315 318,512 11763 76201 1,566,155
Accumuloted depreciafion: FHE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-n%-A-H 94903 3,690 72,066 195,803 10,118 - 376,580
Provided during the year FRERE 18,741 - 19261 40,070 1147 - 79219
Disposals/witeoff HE /s - - (204) (2,361) 618) - (3,183)
Tronsfer fo invesiment properies BEERENE (o)
note o] (1,209 - - (1,209
Exchange reclignment EQA% [1237) = 298] (2,400 79 - [4714)
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NF+ZA=1-H 111,198 3,690 90,125 21112 10,568 - 446,693
Net book value: RESE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-R 789,456 - 165,190 87,400 1,195 76,221 1,119,462
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (confinved)

Notes:

(a)

)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group renfed out
certain floors of its owneroccupied properties to an independent third
party for rental income. At the date of change in use, this property
became invesiment property. Upon the transfer from property, plant and
equipment of HK$19,811,000 (2019: HK$7,077,000) and
corresponding right-of-use land of HK$791,000 (2019:
HK$12,360,000) fo investment properties, this property was revalued
at HK$30,337,000 (2019: HK$23,182,000) with a revaluation
surplus of HK$9,735,000 (2019: HK$3,745,000) credited to the
assef revaluation reserve.

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,714,000 (2019:
HK$2,814,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 25).

17. Investment Properties

16.%¥ ~ i 53 Bkt =)

et :

() BEEBRCEF+_A=+—HLEFE &
M EEIL 5 = 75 IR EAE T8 E DURERE
TUWA - RERRREEER - ZEMERS
REME - BVNE-BERRED
19,811,000 7w (=& — N5 : 7,077,000
BT MEAEEEZ ##% 791,000 7T (2
ZT—N%F 112,360,000 ) BEEREY
HEBF » ZEYEES 230,337,000 7T (=
T—ALF 123,182,000 k) > MEHREGK
9,735,000 7w (Z&— N : 3,745,000%
70) stABEE M EE o

b) RIZBZEBF+-RA=1+—H xEFETIZ
FFEMN27140008 T(ZF —NLF:
2,814,000#7w) EMIFERAR T AEEN—
RRIRITRAE AVIEMR (MIEE25) ©

17. 8¢ &3¢

2020 2019

—EEHF “E—NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZiRAEE 403,126 387,639

Changes in fair value (nofes 6 and 9) N EEE (6 K% 9) (5,618) (4,091)
Transfer from property, plant and EEBEYE - RERREN

equipment and rightof-use land BRI (5t 16)

[note 16) 30,337 23,182

Exchange realignment BE R FHEE 20,348 (3,604)

Carrying amount af 31 December R+ZA=+—HZKEE 448,193 403,126

The Group's investment properties are situated at 6th Floor, Wyler
Centre Il, 200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong, at No. 508, Kunming Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai, the
PRC, and at No. 259 Hehaixi Road, Xinbei District, Changzhou, the

PRC, respectively and are held under medium term leases.

REBZREMED RN E B AZBKE
BB 2003k M0 2 618 » B g
e FEBARK 508 Stk P & N i Ib & Al g 7
B 259 5% « AERZ KB ETHRBTEIELN
EZ =l
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17. Investment Properties (confinved)

At 31 December 2020, the Group's investment property situated in
Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$86,000,000 (2019:
HK$86,000,000 | was pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group [note 25).

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China were revalued on 31 December 2020 based on
valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited ("CWL"),
independent professionally qualified valuers. Valuations were based
on the capitalisation of net rental income derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of
the properties, or where appropriate, with reference to comparable
market fransactions and evidence and taking info consideration
adjustments that reflect differences in transaction timing, location and

tenure.

Each vear, the Group appoints an external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
of an external valuer include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
Management discusses with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial

reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior
years. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 18 to the

financial statements.

17. 8 &W¥E @

RIZZZEF+"HF=+—0 ' xEBATE
86,000,000 Bt UM EENKEME(ZF
—LE @ 86,000,000 7t) BIIRIEAIE T A
EEN—ARIBITREMER (EE25) ©

FEERZKEMED MR EBRTEAER
BUSXCERGEMTHERTERAS
(BER T R_Z-TF+_A=+—HE
i o HEDERFRAENASRAFEER
1> WEEF MY FEERWAREE > S
BA) 2EULRNTERE KEE > LEE
ABLURRRZ S5 ~ R R ERRER -

8% > AEEEZRIINBAEMEENAER Y
MEEITINERE(E © SN EMIEREERIE
EhHNH B2  BUMKRRSIREEE
2% - EEESFERMBRSPRETHER

BfhEMAEGERR A GEGRETR
TFEERZAERALEES o INETYEL

ATEER  BRNES B
BRI -

BRERERHE

KEYELRENR
ABEIRARMIZE 18 o
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EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

under Level 3.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

W 55 ¥ 2% B Bk ()

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

17. Investment Properties (confinved) 17. 8% =)
Fair value hierarchy ATEEER
The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 31 R TETEFSF A=+ —HERTE-AF
December 2020 and 2019 were estimated by using significant TZA=1+—8 > FEEUERTITRRHA
unobservable inputs and the fair value measurements were categorised B 2 R EMEZ R TEER AT EES

SNENE=MRIET °

Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within level 3 of RAFEBEERE=AANDE 2 A TEETE
the fair value hierarchy: HER
Hong Mainland
Kong China
&t HEIARE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 —NEFE— )ﬂ HZiREE 81,000 306,639
Changes in fair value recognised in E"H&( n 7 AIIEED

the income statement A?f‘ifﬁﬁ@] 5,000 (9,091)
Transfer from owner-occupied properties BREETEEWE WE16)

[note 16) = 23,182
Exchange realignment 3 - (3,604)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 and RIZ-NE+ZA=+—HX

at 1 January 2020 “ECEFE-A—HAZEARE 86,000 317,126
Changes in fair value recognised in R RNERZ

the income statement NEBEE - (5,618)
Transfer from owneroccupied properties EREE T (hEYE BT 16)

[note 16) - 30,337
Exchange realignment BE SRR % - 20,348
Carrying amount af 31 December 2020 AZEIEF+ZA=+—H

ZIREE 86,000 362,193
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FR F—REF R ERRESRATEE
between level 1 and level 2 and no transfers into or out of level 3 P8 TEBAF=-ANEE=HBL (T

(2019: Nil).

—NE ) o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

17. Investment Properties (confinved)
Fair value hierarchy (continved)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key

inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

17.

BREME =)

ATEEER @

T AR B E R ES AR EEH A
Wi I

Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
MELER HESE EXFATRRHARE FrIBREABRER
2020 2019
—E_FF “ENF
Hong Kong Market comparable Gross unit rate HK$3,300to  HK$3,300 to
— Commercial properties method per square foot HK$3,400 HK$3,400
— level 3 [note i)
aE TG LEBOE BYHREEMEE 3,300 5TE 3,300BTE
— HRYE (FtsEi) 3,400 5T 3,400 &7t
— E=R
Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rafe 2.5% to 4% to 5%
— Commercial properties approach per annum (note i) 8.25%
— level 3
FREDARE WAB ARG SFEEREE (W) 25%%F 4% 5%
— ERYE 8.25%
— BF=H

Notes:
i. The higher the gross unit rate per square foot, the higher the fair value.

ii. The higher the capitalisation rate per annum, the lower the fair value.

18. Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office premises and
stores used in its operations. lump sum payments were made upfront
fo acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 45
to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases. leases of office premises and stores generally
have lease terms between 2 and 11 years. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group. There are several lease contracts that include extension and

fermination options and variable lease payments.

18.

et -
BTHREEUEENS  ATEES -

i SFEAMERES > ATEHE-

HLE

FEBESEEA
FrEBPEEMASEN AR MEHERE]
BEHREGH - BRAFH—RMEATRUEEE
WeRETHE T #th - FHAAR A5 E 504F > MIREZ
FXMBEENHRRT B EE S (IERR
IH o WARRFTREFHNEEMEENF2E 1)
Fo—RME > AERAAARERUINT
HELROAEEERE - BROEELER~MELE
LRI ENRBIEE S ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

18. Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continved)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's rightofuse assefs and the
movements during the year are as follows:

18.f18 )
FEBEAEBA &

(a)

EREEE
FERFANERAEEENRAERED
LI

Leasehold
land Land Buildings Total
e 1t 1gF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TFET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—HF—H 38,259 114,816 158,635 311,710
Additions NE = = 112,735 112,735
Transfer to investment EEEREY
propetties (note 17) (Hta£ 17) - (12,360) - (12,360)
Termination of leases KIFAE - - (10,266) (10,260)
Depreciation charge TEER (933) (3,170) (101,281) (105,384
Exchange realignment PERIEE (419) (968) (1,667) (3,054)
At 31 December 2019 AE-NFE+-B=+—H
and 1 January 2020 k_E-FF—HF—H 36,907 98,318 158,156 293,381
Additions RE - - 49,030 49,030
Transfer to investment BB
properties [note 17) (Ht3E 17) (791) - - (791)
Termination of leases ®IFRE - - (17,558) (17,558)
Depreciation charge TEER (821) (2,804) (92,680) (96,305)
Impairment charge HEER - - (47,608) (47,608)
Exchange realignment BRI 2,101 4,930 2,873 9,904
At 31 December 2020 RIE-EBFE+"F=+—H 37,396 100,444 52,213 190,053

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's right-ofuse land
with a net carrying amount of approximately HK$ 12,685,000
[2019: HK$13,157,000] was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group [nofe 25).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the impairment
loss of HK$47,608,000 represented the write-down of the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets for certain
underperforming sfores to their recoverable amounts because
the market conditions and the impact after the outbreak of
Covid-19 were out of the management's expectation. The
estimated recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2020 were
defermined based on their value in use amounts esfimated by
using discount rate of 14%.

R_E_ZTFE+"A=+—H'&x&EH
BREDFEL 12,685,000 cHE F A
LM (CTF—HE 13,157,000 7T)
BRI EAR T AEEN—RIBTRE
BIIELR (HIEE25) ©

BE_E-EF+_A=+—HItFE >
BERSI8 47,608,000 8 s AR T &
Covid-19/RES B B SIEETEH -
HEETREXNEEFHNEREEEN
REEMAZEEATKOGE RIZE
TE+ A=+ BNES R REESEE
TR EREIRR 4% EENEREE
BE o
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18. Leases (continued) 18.
The Group as a lessee (continved)
(b)  Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

NN
FEBEAREAE
) FE&E
TS B I FE R BT

2020 2019
bt 3 —E2—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January N—B—HEmE 159,110 152,750
New leases HEE 48,765 110,596
Termination of leases KIEEE (18,018) (?,8106)
Accretion of interest recognised FRRESRA B
during the year 5,987 7,901
Covid-19-related rent concessions A AR Covid-19
from lessors BEEEANEEER (8,590) -
Payments ANEA (98,600) (100,645)
Exchange realignment FEREEE 4,786 (1,676)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZB=+—BKEE 93,440 159,110
Analysed info payable: PAR Y ANE
Within one year —FR 61,373 Q0,449
In the second year BE_F 21,862 42,148
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=EhF (BIEEREEE) 7,560 22,762
Beyond five years f BRE 2,645 3,751
93,440 159,110
Less: Current portion B L REE D (61,373) (90,449
Non-current porfion SERENE D 32,067 68,661

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 36
fo the financial statements.

As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the Group
has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16 and applied
the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions granted

by the lessors for leases of certain buildings during the year.

HES RO HRERME 30K

%o

MM FEIRFRMIEE 2. 2 PTIEE » ANEER
ERMEBYHZRSENF16RNE
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18. Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continved)

(c)

(d)

18. M8 =)
FEBEAEBA &
RUE=I0R, (3tA) BB EUE

The amounts charged/(credited) in income statement in (c)

relation to leases are as follows:

me

2020 2019
ZEZEHF —NEF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HESBHE 5,987 7,901
Depreciation charge of rightofuse FREEEITERS
assets 96,305 105,384
Expense relafing fo shortferm leases FEHATH EAERARE 2 269,352 463,752
Variable lease payments not included in TiEt A ESBEEN
the measurement of lease liabilities ARSI 3,001 5,602
Covid-19-related rent concessions A ARME Covid-19
from lessors BIEHEANEEER (8,590) -
Impairment of rightof-use assets EREEERE 47,608 =
Total amount recognised in income TR AR S4B AR
statement 413,663 582,639
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 34(c) (d) SRS HLREER I FRERME 34()

to the financial statements.

Kz -
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18. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases ifs investment properties (note 17) consisting of
commercial properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China, and part
of its owner-occupied staff quarters, under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenanfs to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was HK$ 16,896,000
(2019: HK$15,335,000), details of which are included in note 6 to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases

with its tenants are as follows:

18.#18 =

FERAHEA
FEERBECEHEZEHEEREY X (Y
E17) > BEEBRPEIANMEERYER
MERYEEIRES - HEFRRETERER
ZfREE » WRBERNRITHRETER
HERE - AEBFREIEE KA

16,896,000 T (Z2— L4 1 15,335,000
BIT) > BRFHIEEN M BIREMEES -

RIE-ZEFE+_B=+—H » ~EBRKKEK
HEERZEEREAL 2 N fiE S SRR
REFRAEMAZUT ¢

2020 2019

—ECEF “E2—hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FE7T

Within one year —F R 17,448 15,104
After one year but within two years —FEBEMER 16,471 13,692
After two years but within three years THEBE=ERK 10,594 11,475
After three years but within four years =FRENERN 6,752 5,681
After four years but within five years MEBBRER 3,450 2,547
After five years REHB 1,603 173

56,318 48,672
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19. Other Asset 19. Hftb & &

1

ERBERARE

i A

#

Z

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED &

In accordance with the requirements of the Shenzhen City’s urban
development plan issued by the Shenzhen City Luohu District Town Re-
development Bureau (ZRYITIZEME T ERM/E), on 23 October
2017, Embry (China) Garments lid. (“Embry SZ"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a relocation compensation
agreement and a supplemental relocation compensation agreement
(collectively known as the “Relocation Compensation Agreement”)
with Shenzhen Huiren Jewelry City Investment Limited [(FIITHEE{ZEk
BN ERRAE), a company established in the PRC and an
independent third party developer (the “Developer”) in order to
implement a renewal plan by demolishing and rebuilding in the Buxin
Industrial Area, Shenzhen, the PRC. The details of the Relocation
Compensation Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 25 October 2017. According to the Relocation Compensation
Agreemenf, Embry SZ shall surrender its land use righf and its
properties situated in the Buxin Industrial Area [the "Original
Properties”). The Developer, in refum, agreed fo (i) compensate Embry
SZ with new propetties in a form of new industrial research and
development buildings (#T2YE R EMABRECERZE) on a piece
of industrial purposed land with an area similar to that of the Original
Properties to be developed and built by the Developer (the “New
Properties”); (i) compensate Embry SZ the cost of land use right of the
Original Properties, renfal cost for Embry SZ to lease properties during
the move out period and other costs related to the Relocation
Arrangement [“Cash Compensation”), which are payable by the
Developer up fo the end of the move out period; and {iii] sell extra
properties at a new building to be constructed in the Buxin Industrial
Area, Shenzhen, the PRC ("New Building”) fo Embry SZ, whereby the
price and area of such properties at the New Building shall be subject
to further negotiation between Embry SZ and the Developer

(collectively known as the “Relocation Arrangement”).

Embry SZ has moved out from the Original Properties in the prior
years and signed the properties transfer confirmation (BB
=) with the Developer on 30 November 2017.

TRIF RN TS 2240 & 0 Th B4 5 AR R BY 2R I 75 45
TEERINRE  RZB2—tF+A+=
H> 2#% (FE) REARAE (MZFF R
> ZRABNEEMEAT) ERYIHECE
ERREARAR (—ERFEMIINAR R
BuF=—r%Em ((%RE))) TURBME
ek ke FE R B AR (E 17 5% (78 TIRB R ET
1) > LEBRFBIRYIFB O TXEIFFRE
BUBHERE o RBHEEWZRTBFENE
ABRPA " E—tFE+A-+EHMNAM -
REBERBHERR > A5 RNFRZHEMUR
mOLTEENYE (TRYE)) ERRLHER
1# o FREERLILFEIR () /i EZF SR YIFEEU
FRYEMENTERM ERAERHERERE
ENREERMEMAEREEEFTENYE
(T2 1) 5 (i) FEZFTS R R 2 L
FARERL A ~ ZF15 RN BREEIBEEMEDN
BEMEREAREBHENEMRE (TR
E) BLEEANEEBHPERBEREE
B i) B 22 # 55 R & R BRI O T
FEHET (8T ) MERIMIE » Ik > 3
BF 2 ZEYMEZ BRREBERTZF SR
HEEmE—SERRHEE (REBZHH) -
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E—+tFE+—RB=THALRBEITFES
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19. Other Asset (continued)

To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the
Company's directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, the
Group does nof expect any obstacles to receive the New Properties
and the Cash Compensation from the Developer. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group derecognised the property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments. According to the
ferms of the Relocation Compensation Agreement and the property
fransfer confirmation, the Group also recognised the fair value of the
right to receive the New Properties ["Other Asset”) as "Other Asset”
and the receivables in relation to Cash Compensation during the year
ended 31 December 2017. Other Asset is initially recognised at ifs

fair value and subsequently carries at cost less impairment.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of Other Asset and
receivables in relafion to Cash Compensation under the Relocation
Arrangement were approximately HK$426,667,000 (2019:
HK$402,697,000] and HK$23,951,000 (2019: HK$30,347,000)

(nofe 22), respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amount of the Other Asset
has been defermined based on fair value according to the valuation
performed by CWIL, an independent professional qualified valuer. The
valuation was dependent on certain significant inputs including gross

unit rate per square metre and a discount rafe.

19. i & & @)

BARABDERFE—VGEESHBIRN &
BRMERE » AERBIANE RERETE R
REMETTHREAER -B#E"T—tF
TZR=1T—HLEEE > AEERKRIEEIY
¥ BERRERBANHENHIREE - R
WBHENEREEBIRBENNR > ~EH
RBEZE—tF+__B=1T—HLEFELS
Wean 2k A RESBUREIT ) K B0 R R (THMtE )
NATE > REVREHE - HUBENT %
HRTERER - RN ABUREARR

R TETZE+"RB=+—H ' EthEEKRE
BB 2 IR S E R IERE E 2 A4
426,667,000 7T (ZZ2—NEF : 402,697,000
B JT) /239510008 m(Z & — N &
30,347,000 %7%) (fizE22) ©

CZEoBE+-A=+—A  HEENT
RElS EE R BT B A E S EM TR
RATEATHOSERATERR o GERARE
FEAWAUSE » QST KRB (IERES
B o

20. Inventories 20. 8
2020 2019
—EITHE —Z2—NEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Raw materials By 43,412 67,184
Work in progress pamp- TR 43,218 37,070
Finished goods BN 491,960 688,100

578,590 792,354
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21. Trade Receivables 21. JEWCE 5 %

EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for wholesalers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally for a period of one month,
extending up to three months for major customers. The Group seeks to
maintain sfrict control over its outstanding receivables by the sales
department fo minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's frade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables

are non-inferestbearing.

An ageing analysis of the Group's frade receivables as at the end of

FERFTEUEEMTARZRETEE
—REERMEBERAR - EEH—RD—
B8R TEZRZEEMAFTEE=EA - &
EE 2 HE R BRIEAR U Z FEUGRIA » LUBEAS
B - Bl S R EIRE TR o &
R EXFrifiR AR 2 BIRE 5 RS R % T
E2ZREEERAERS  HUBEEBE
Ehz AR - REEY EHEERE 5 RS
BT A R IRIR M E M EE IR - UL
EZRMALAES o

FEANREHBEEH ZBKE ZRRIBE

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: EZHRZIRE DTN !
2020 2019
—E_FF “E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 90 days QOHW 65,515 78,838
91 to 180 days Q1 E180H 1,545 Q76
181 to 360 days 181E360H 908 1,209
Over 360 days 360 E 3,722 4,402
71,690 85,425
Less: Impairment allowance AR ERE (4,630) (5,611)
67,060 79,814
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade FEI 8 S BE=h ~ IR BB S BN T ;
receivables are as follows:
2020 2019
ot et 23 ZENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
1 January H—B— 5,611 10,442
Write-back of impairment losses recognised, A’MEJEH?E%*@EEW ’
net (note 9) THEE (KfEE Q) (981) (4,831)
At 31 December R+—_B=+—8H 4,630 5,611
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21. Trade Receivables (confinved)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure ECls. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns [i.e., by geographical region and customer type). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's frade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

21. JERCRE B R @)

REREBARAEFRERETREDNH > U
STERHEERE - BHEXDEREERLUS
BEANZEZTR 2HEER EIEEHRE
FHRA) WBRARHET - ZstERRIAK
IR - ERREMRNREBRNSHNAR
BEEE - BRIFERAREERGRANSG
HEKAIEER -

MU HI AR EE R E ZIRRE AR HEE
R EERRIER

RZZE-Z2F+_A=+—H

Past due
A
Tto3 3109 Over 9
Current months months months Total
B 1E3MER 3IE9ER BiRYER gt
ECL rate BHEEHEE 0.06% 1.42% 93.28% 100.00% 6.46%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) EREAAE (FET) 65,515 1,545 908 3,722 71,690
ECLs (HK$'000) BHEERE (TET) 39 22 847 3722 4,630
As at 31 December 2019 R-_E-h&E+-B=+—H
Past due
eIl
1103 3109 Over 9
Current months months months Tofal
B8 1ZE3@ER 3EQERE BEOER 1Bzt
ECl rate TEEEERIEX 0.07% 1.64% 93.88% 100.00% 6.57%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREAB(E (T8TT) 78,838 976 1,209 4,402 85,425
ECLs (HK$'000) HAHEEHE (FET) 58 16 1,135 4,402 5,611
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22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other

22.%1@%& ~ 4 < e LAt 1 WK

Receivables
2020 2019
—EEHF —ENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deposit paid and related direct cost YRBB LR T ERRRE RS
for the land use right in Shandong e REFEEER 9,707 ?,161
Deposits for acquisition of items of WY ~ BB R RBIEE
property, plant and equipment [SARE:E= 2,748 3,964
Prepayments SEINE 20,544 23,646
Receivables in relation to Cash BB Z IR ME
Compensation under the Relocation FEWRRIA (BifaE 19)
Arrangement [note 19) 23,951 30,347
Deposits and other receivables & R HMFEWGRIA 42,891 53,599
99,841 120,717
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATENRRIE ~ #E R HA
deposits and other receivables FEWGRIE 2 BNERER 1A (76,297) (95,680)
Non-current portion JERNERER (A 23,544 25,031

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental and other
deposits and receivables in relation to Cash Compensation under the
Relocation Arrangement. VWhere applicable, an impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date by considering the probability of
default of comparable companies with published credit ratings. In the
situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings can be
identified, expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss
rafe approach with reference to the historical loss record of the
Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and

forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and past
due amounts. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loss

allowance was assessed o be minimal.

BEREMBRRBEIEZEARKREBZH TR
MBEARNAENEMRE REWTRIER - 8
BOERT  BBEEEA QSRR
EERABMENME » EEERS BETRED
o WIREEH R BB ERATRNAILE AT
AlESEAEENELIRRTHRARERE
EEtTEHREAER - ABEEAXUNBERRE
ARSI Y R SRAS T AR B TRA o

A LSRN EREEARIREER KA
HMERRIE R E—hE+_A=1+—H
R-EBTEE+_RB=1+—H BREHST
fEBIRIE o
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23. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

23. BLE R BLEFHY

2020 2019

ZEEHF “B—NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash and bank balances RERIBITHEER 245,729 104,549
Non-pledged time deposits with original REBARRIEHA R VDR=EA

maturity of less than three months Z EARRE BRI
when acquired 179,420 05,681
Cash and cash equivalents B RIESZEY) 425,149 200,230

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to
HK$393,492,000 (2019: HK$184,326,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies; however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through

banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are normally made for varying
periods of between approximately one day and three months on
average depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn inferest at the respective short ferm time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with

no recent history of default.

24. Trade Payables

An ageing analysis of the Group's frade payables as af the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice dafe, is as follows:

FERRKRSHEEEAUARBSEZIRE
R SR1T4EER#5 393,492,0008 7T (ZZ2—H4F
184,326,000 7t) - AREEREIEEREHR
AEMEE  ERBEPEAEZ IMESER
Bl > LURAEEE « EEREEERE > £~&H
BEFAERBETINERZEBZRITRA
REZBAEMER

RITEFREBSHRITERNXEEZF T
K5 R - EHEHMEREE TSN —BE
ZERTEF  HFAERERZHEEHFRM
o WA IERERERMETE  iR1T
MERRE IR R s 2 (E B RIFIRIT ©

24 JEAFH 5 IR

AEENRSHBEE B Z BN EZRNIRER
BZERHZAREDITIOT

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hEF

HKS$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Within 90 days QOHMW 31,883 44,484
91 1o 180 days 91ZE180H 1,086 1,800
181 to 360 days 181 =360 H 670 906
Over 360 days 360 E 1,952 5,533
35,591 52,723

The trade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally settled
on 30 to 90 days ferms.

FEE ZIRFAAL TS > —RRIS0EQ0HR

+ =
= I
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25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 25. at AT A%
2020 2019
k- k2 —ZNE
Effective Effective
inferest rafe Maturity HK$'000 inferest rate Maturity HK$'000
1 vl BIRF=
(%) i) ]2 TERT (%) |5 A TER
Current Nt
Bank loans RTER Hong Kong Hong Kong
— secured — HifH Interbank Interbank
Offered Rate Offered Rate
("HIBOR”)+1.45 +1.45
BRET BB
FEFE +1.45 2021 32437 FEFE+1.45 2020 28,091
Bank loans BIER HIBOR+1.80 to HIBOR+1.80 o
— unsecured — Bif#E HIBOR+1.85 HIBOR+1.85
ERBTRERS EABTEERE
+1.80 EFERIT +1 80EEBRIT
FEiFE+1.85 2021 69,188 FIEFE+1.85 2020 63,767
Bank loans BTER
— unsecured — B - - - 4.57 2020 33,708
101,625 125,566
Non-current JEENER
Bank loans FITER HIBOR+1.45 HIBOR+1.45
— secured - BigH BRBTRERE EARIBTEERE
+1.45 2022-2024 336,124 +1.45 2021-2024 353,430
HIBOR+1.80 fo
HIBOR+1.85
HIBOR+1.85 ERBTEERE
Bank loans BTER ERRTRERS +1 80EFHBRT
— unsecured — BifH +1.85 2022-2024 26,667 AERFE+1.85 2021-2024 79,184
362,791 432614
464,416 558,180
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25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 25. 5t BRRATH R @
(continued)
2020 2019
—E-EF “E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
Analysed info: PAYI T
Bank loans repayable: K TRYEREEEZ SRITEMR
Within one year or on demand —FREHRERER 101,625 125,566
In the second year FE 58,641 82,684
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BE-EFLF (OEERFE) 304,150 349,930
464,416 558,180
Less: Amount classified as current portion B B ABNHRER D £ KR (101,625) (125,566)
Amount classified as non-current portion P 2 IFRIARE DAV £ 2R 362,791 432,614
Notes: Mzt
[a)  The above bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and () BT EFRUBTRARKSE ) £5

Renminbi and amounted to HK$464,416,000 (2019:
HK$524,472,000) and nil (2019: HK$33,708,000), respectively.

[b)  Certain of the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i) mortgages over the Group's investment property situated in Hong

Kong of HK$86,000,000 (2019: HK$86,000,000); and

(ii) mortgages over the Group's building of HK$2,714,000 (2019:
HK$2,814,000) and corresponding right-of-use land of
HK$12,685,000 (2019: HK$13,157,000), respectively.

At 31 December 2020, the Group's term loans in the amount of
HK$58,076,000 containing an on-demand clause had been
classified as current liabilities. For purpose of the above analysis, the
loans are included within current interest-bearing bank borrowings
and analysed into bank loans repayable on demand. Based on the
maturity terms of the loans, the amounts repayable in respect of the
Group's loans are: HK$91,268,000 payable within one vyear;
HK$68,998,000 payable in the second year; and
HK$304, 150,000 payable in the third to fifth years, inclusive.

DR 464,416,000 T (Z B — N F:
524,472,0008 7t) R \B(Z T — N F:
33,708,000 #7T) ©

b)  AEEETRITETIZUU T A ERIT

(i) MUAEBAREBRNRENENERS
86,000,000% t( = & — K &F:
86,000,000#7T) ;

(i) DAAEEIET R fE AR AR o5
#2,714,000%8 t(Z &8 — L F:
2,814,000% 7t) %% 12,685,000 7t
(ZZ—1% 113,157,000 7T) °

AT CEE+"RB=+—H AEENTEH
BERE 458,076,000 HRSHEER
BREDR EDEARBEE - st LS Fm
= BRGEtABHS BIRITER MDA
EREBHIRITEN o RIBERBIBIHAERR »
MAEBEREENHEALS: —EREN
91,268,000 7T ; 5 _FEME(T 68,998,000
T RBEZEFRE(BEEEME) BN
304,150,000 7t ©
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26. Other Payables and Accruals

26 JLAth JBE £+F 53K 9 B HE 5tk 9

2020 2019

ZECTHF —ENE

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat FET FET

Other payables HAFE IR (a) 94,096 80,557

Accruals FE=t=RIE 93,359 115,569

Contract liabilities BHAaE (b) 22,011 29,334

209,466 225,460

less: Amount classified as current portion B YA BNEREMA YR (204,766) (225,460)

Amount classified as non-current portion 5l A BN ER SR B S 58 4,700 =

Notes: Hifat -

[a)  The amounts of HK$7,097,000 (2019: HK$5,443,000) included in (a) AEBEREMENMRBRFEIEN 7,097,000
other payables of the Group were due to related companies as at 31 BT (Z2—NE 1 5,443,00087T) AR =F
December 2020. These balances were unsecured, interestfree and TEF+ - HA=+—HENMEAS ZHIE -
repayable in accordance with normal trading terms (note 13(alli)). ZEEGAEIRE RERER—REEERR

B3 (FIE 1 3(a(i))
Other payables are non-interestbearing. HMELFIBRTEE o
(b)  Asat 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020, b WIZZ2E—NF—HA—H>ZZ—hFE+=AH

the contract liabilities included deferred revenue arising from the loyalty
points VIP programme of the Group and shortterm advances received
from customers for the sale of goods of HK$42,875,000,
HK$29,334,000 and HK$22,01 1,000, respectively. The decrease in
contract liabilities in 2020 and 2019 was mainly due fo the decrease
in shorterm advances received from customers for the sale of goods
and deferred revenue arising from the loyalty points VIP programme of
the Group.

27. Deferred Liabilities

Deferred liabilities represent the estimated provision in respect of long

service payments which may become payable in the future under the

=t+—BMZEBZFF+A=+—8 &%
B & & 8 9 5l A42875000% 7T
29,334,000 5t F122,011,0008 5t B #E A&
EEEEBHES S5 8IEEMNIEER UK
TIHE EREE L WEEIRRS - Z2—N,
FERZTZIEEENEERLD T EBZRP R
EERAEL BB ERRRUR R AL EEE
REHNEG SR EENIRLERE o

27 . B fE

ELEaERESERSBEEE A ERRARE
T2 AR - REIRBEAIRERRERTBRE

Hong Kong Employment Ordinance to employees in proportion to RiFPIREERAEEZFEMARE (T
their periods of services with the Group up to the end of the reporting
period.
2020 2019
—EFF “ENEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January w—HB—H 414 2,245
Provision/ (write-back of provision) for the year FEEEBE (BEBaE) (B )
[note 9) 377 [2,042)
Payments/(refunds) during the year FEEZ A GRE) (791) 211
At 31 December “+-_BA=+—H - 414
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28. Deferred Tax 28. BB
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year FRRLERESEREEZBINT !

are as follows:

QILIWIT SONIQT0H AdawWa

Temporary Withholding
difference faxes on Temporary Tox losses
arising from undistibuted ~~ difference of available
the Unrealised profits on impairment, for offsetting 157

Revaluation Relocation profit of PRC provisions against future s
of properties  Arrangement inventories subsidiories  and accruals Others ~taxable profits Total if
A AR e
HEMEAR Bk FRMERR B
REsHEE AR FOREN festaoa it 5 g
WREHt  ZERER BRER JEMR CEWEG Aft ag @zt 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 Il

T T T T#n T#r S T T

At 1 January 2019 RZE-h%E-A-H 6,994 110,840 (45,943 38,526 (36,874) 5,124) = 68419
Deferred fox debied fo equity £
during the year A 936 - B - . . . 936

Deferred tox charged/[credied]  E MR/
fo the income statement (B%) ZEILiE

during the year fnole 12] (H=£12) = [971) (5,024) - 1,908 (1,247) - 15,334)
Paymen's during the year ERZA - - = = - 687) = (687)
Bxchange redlignmerf ERsE (69) (1,234 573 (433) 392 76 = (713
A 31 December 2019ond  RZE-f1E

1 January 2020 tZA=+-H

ZZTEF-R 7841 108,635 (50,394) 38,093 (34,574) (6,982) - 62619

Deferred fox debied fo equity ~ EREREIRZ
duing the year FIRE 2434 - - - - - - 2434

Deferred fox chorged/|crediied]  ERE MR/
fo the income statement (£%) zETHE

during the year fnole 12] W12 (1,404) (1,574) 18,087 - (10,018) (28) 4782) 21
Paymen's during the year FRsft - - - 6,854) - (708) - 7,562)
Exchange realignment EREE 525 6,373 (1923 1,859 (2,653 469) (284) 3428

At 31 December 2020 R-E-%%
+ZA=1+-H 9,39 113434 (34,230) 33,09 (47,245) 8,187) (5,066) 61,200
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238. Deferred Tax (continved)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group

for financial reporting purposes:

28. BB @)

LX"F%K%@?TH?FEWEWE ZIERER IR R
D

2020 2019
—E°EF “E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deferred fax assets recognised in the AR MR R EERS Z I
consolidated sfatement of financial position MIEEE (71,255) (92,300)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RARE AR R ESS Z I
consolidated statement of financial position RIE&E 132,455 154,925
61,200 62,619

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$410,095,000 (2019: HK$369,663,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in
Macau of HK$2,905,000 (2019: HK$1,935,000) that will expire
in three years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assefs have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable

profits will be available against which the fax losses can be ufilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax law, a 10% withholding fax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax freaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rafes are 5% and 10%.
In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected to be
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have
made assessment based on the factors which included dividend policy
and the level of capital and working capital required for the Group's

operation in the foreseeable future.

FEBNEBEEZIRIERBIEL 410,095,000
BT (ZZ2—N4F © 369,663,000787T) Al #&FR
HAIRSE E L FR A B Z R RERI A © 7
EMIMERPIEERIARE 2,905,000 7T (2
Z— 51 1,935000%87T)  BR=ZFEANE
o FHRHE L BB AT RRERREF o B
REFHEEDREBEREHEE—REBZAR
BIRME A B B AR SEN G A BRI G

EIMEERIRIARE » ML B 2 F R IRFENIE
IERMIFEE ©

RIBPEREEFISIRE » RAPBIARER L Z 5
EhEMIEREESRZKREAEFHMN10%Z
R - BRAEER ST N\E—HF—HEE
¥ BERAR _EELE+_A=1+—H®BZ
BF o HhEAERIINRIREEFBREER
SIEMRBHRA > ABERZBRINIMREAER
BemAERME > BAMEDS%R10%
st PR KRNI I MY B A B FRHAR 5L
“Z2T)N\FE—B—BEFEENERMD K
BRFERE > ERERBEEEREBERA
SRR RRREEMBNELIREEEDK
FERRIELTE
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28. Deferred Tax (continved)

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate withholding tax amount
arising from the temporary differences associated with these
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately HK$38,644,000 (2019:
HK$36,255,000).

There are no income fax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.

29. Share Capital

28. BB =)

RIETZBE+"/A=+—H > BZFMURE
B K PRI B A SRR M AR FESBIE E R IB & &
BYE R TR AR A S HAY A 38,644,000 87T
(ZZ2—74F © 36,255,000787T) °

A AE AR ER A R B I AT PSR
RIFBR o

29, A

2020 2019
k- St 2.2 —“E-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Authorised: ERE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 iR =K EE
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BTHE i@ 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE :
422,416,638 (2019: 422,416,638 422,416,638 (ZE—NEF .
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 422,416,638 %) SREE
0.01 BrTHyEiER 4,224 4,224

30. Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity of the financial statements.

The confributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the excess of the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant fo
the reorganisation of certain members of the Group which took place
on 31 December 1992, over the nominal value of issued shares of
Embry Group Limited ("EGL") in exchange therefor; {ii] the premium
arising from the shares issued by EGL for settlement of the amount due
to the ultimate holding company of HK$15,841,000; (iii) the
premium arising from the acquisition of Embry (H.K.) Limited ("Embry
HK") from the non-controlling interests of HK$5,000,000; and (iv] the
excess of the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant fo the group reorganisation, over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor and
the then existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as
fully paid ot par.

30. ki

RRRBTFEFERRREZRUREEZEHE
SR HBREN G ESEREERA

rEBBREGEIRBEAN - "F
+TZA=t—HWBAERETRERE &%
F i B AT IMD R E(ERR K R LL (2 SR 8%
77 Embry Group Limited (TEGLI) B2 {5 BY E 1B Z
B (i) CCIMEERNRRERABME
15,841,000 BcmiETEITRMNEERRE ;
i) M IFER S W IR L2 H 5 (F8) BERAT
(FZF=&# ) PRELEES000,000#87T ;
(v RBEEREARBEWNEABNKRANE
BEBEARATEREFITUEAIMNRAEE
BYBR 0 LA K 2 E (B A R B ME LR BY
10,000,000 i &R EEOC.01 BTN ERIRA

et
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30. Reserves (continued)

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the PRC,
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profits after tax, if any, to the
enterprise expansion and stafutory reserve funds, which are non-
distributable, before profit distributions fo shareholders. The amounts
of the transfers are subject to the approval of the board of directors of

these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS 3 which
permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred prior fo 1
January 2001, to remain eliminated against the consolidated reserves.
The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising
from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, was
stated at cost, which amounted to HK$3,168,000 (2019:
HK$3,168,000) as at 31 December 2020.

31. Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 28 May 2020
(the “Share Option Scheme”| for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute fo the success of

the Group's operations.

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include, (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time, including directors but
excluding any non-executive director) of the Company, its subsidiaries
or invested entity; [ii) any non-executive directors [including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, ifs subsidiaries
or invested entity: (iii] any supplier or customer of the Group or any
invested entity; (iv) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any
invested entity; and [v|] any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any invested entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any invested enfity. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 28 May 2020 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of ten years
to 27 May 2030.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30. ik thi =)
1R4E R EE A ARRIRG) » A A TR RE AT
B A BB R T E 2 LA R (1
B) AR R SR RA T O IR
REERERES C9ATARN © BBHNSE
RSB ATNEERILE S TS o

NEBCHBEBYBREELFIFNEE
MEY  RHF_TT—E—F—ArETWRE
FREANE BT RES AL o BB
RERERNE_ZZ—F—A—HalkEWEB
NEEENEESERRAIIE R ZE
F+"H=+—HB%3,168008x (==
—NEE : 3,168,000#7T) ©

31 Vil e Rt )
AARRTBBER A=+ BRAERE
S (TR AERHEL)) - LA AR BRI
H AR A E S S B R B o

frlerestEl
BRESENSERSREQRE (|1 ARF H
WE AR EATNE AN REES
(BREES > BAEBEEAFFNATES) ; (ij&
AT~ BB ARSI E QBN ERIERNIT
EX (BEBUFNTES) ; (i) 7EBIFTR
ERENEARERRER ; (v EIAEER
WIEMPAIREATRMEIAZE « B REMEM
SENEARAE ; kv FEBEARERE
R ERADNERRRAEEREAHLER
BISPTREABFETEMNESNFAA - B
RESAENR _Z"FFRAR/"+H/N\BER > R
JRREEHEELE > BRIARIARER +FEET
E-ZEFH_+tHe
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31. Share Option Scheme (continved)

Share Option Scheme (continved)

The maximum number of shares fo be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a general meeting. Share
options granfed to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors of

the Company.

In addition, any share options granted o a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company's shares at the date of the grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to

shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is deferminable by the directors, which period may
commence from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of the offer of
the share options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company's shares as quoted on daily quotations sheet of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "'Stock Exchange”’) on the
date of the offer of the share options; |ii] the average closing prices of
the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five frading days immediately preceding the

date of offer; and [iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

31. A RESHE =)
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31. Share Option Scheme (continved)
Share Option Scheme (continved)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders' meefings.

31. IR REGHE )
BREHE @
BT T A AR SRR EAE
BRI o

UTHINR ZEZEF+ZA=+—HERE

Sef out below are the outstanding share options under the Share

Option Scheme as at 31 December 2020:

STEIE T HARITRERERE

Number of share options
HREYE
At Granted Lapsed Exercised At
1 Jonuary during during during 31 December  Dafe of grant of Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name o category of participant 2020 the year the year the year 2020  share options share options share options
RIBZEE it - 23
SAZWRNER —R—H FEREHTH FREY ERfE +ZA=+—B ERESHEN RIS BRRIETEE
Executive directors Hi7ES
Mr. Cheng Man Tai WERLE = 1,430,000 = = 1,430,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 1.02
ZECZE+°B=FH 29 December 2025*
“B_—&+ZA=1RZE
2 REt-A-thR*
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza BEdt - 1,220,000 - - 1,220,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 to 1.02
ZZIZHE+TA=TH 29 December 2025*
2 —4+"F=1H%E
ZECRE+ZBZHARY
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Bt - 1,300,000 - - 1,300,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 to 1.02
ZECZE+°B=FH 29 December 2025*
2 —4#+°F=1HZE
B RF+-AZthA*
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen BEREE - 295,000 - - 295,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 to 1.02
ZBZEE+TA=HH 29 December 2025*
“3_—F+ZB=1RE
ZE_RE+AZ+AR*
Ms. Ly Qun BELL - 665,000 = - 665,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 to 1.02
ZECZE+°B=FH 29 December 2025*
“B_—&+°A=1RZE
-2 i -y =
Independent non-executive  FILIEMTES
directors
Mr. Lau Siu Ki ABEEE = 100,000 = = 100,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 1.02
ZZCZE+B=FH 29 December 2025*
“8_—F+"A=1+RZE
ZE_RE+AZ+ARY
Mr. lee Kwan Hung FREE - 100,000 - - 100,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 to 1.02
ZZITE+TA=TH 29 December 2025*
B —Ft-A=1RE
ZECRE+ZBZHARY
Prof. lee T.S EREHE - 100,000 - - 100,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 to 1.02
ZECZE+°B=FH 29 December 2025*
2 —4+°F=1HZE
R+ AZtTAA*
Other employees HitES
In aggregate 4zt = 14,790,000 = = 14,790,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 1.02
ZZCZE+TBEFH 29 December 2025*
ZE--F+ZR=tHE
ZE_RE+AZHARY
- 20,000,000 = = 20,000,000
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31. Share Option Scheme (coninved) 31. M e wk ) )

Share Option Scheme (continved)

Notes fo the reconciliation of share options under the Share Option

Scheme outstanding during the year:

*

The share options were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

= 30% of such options were vested on 30 December 2021 with
an exercise period from 30 December 2021 to 29 December
2025;

—  30% of such options were vested on 30 December 2022 with
an exercise period from 30 December 2022 to 29 December
2025; and

= the remaining 40% of such opfions were vested on 30 December
2023 with an exercise period from 30 December 2023 to 29
December 2025.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$3,888,000 (HK$0.19 each), of which the Company recognised
a share option expense of HK$12,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The fair value of the equity-seffled share options granted during the
year, was estimated as at the dafe of grant using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options

were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 3.00
Expected volatility (%) 29.08
Riskfree interest rate (%) 0.495
Expected life of options [years| 5
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 1.02

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future frends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome. The exit rate is based on the historical data on

staff /director turnover rates.

No other feature of the share options granfed was incorporated info

the measurement of fair value.

fBIGHEETE (8)
6 P B RS ARE 5t B TE T A9 S 17 160 B A 2 4 B
=

* AR T H R ERERE

- Hp30sW B —%+_-_A=+0%
B TR —_ S _—5+_-"BA=+H
EECHFE+"AZ+AHS

— BAB0UR—EB__F+_A=+HR
B IS —_f+_-/A=+H
E_E_RE+_A+HAH K

- HERA0% M B _=F+_"B=+H%
B TR T _=F+_HF=+H
EZTHRF+RAZ+AhB-e

FRFTR L IBIRERNAT{E%3,88800087T
(019BTEERE » ARENBEZR"E
F+A=T+—HLEEERR—FHEREMS
12,0007 °

FRFTR B EGEE BT IR E B ERA
T IARR TR ET R % B AR HE P AR AR RO IR R A
HrRMAFTEHATE - TRIBFAAEINEA
iz -

B B = (%) 3.00
TASTIRIE (%) 29.08
5 BB A =R (%) 0.495
HARETRET 8 (5F) 5
eI E (BET) 1.02
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31. Share Option Scheme (continved) 31 I A vkl )

Share Option Scheme (continved)

The following share options were outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme during the year:

BREE @)
LU 54 poBE AR e 5t B 1B T 14 SR AT A BB A8
1

2020 2019
“ETHF —Z2—hEF

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise

price price

hREFEY kg

7158 I1EE
Number Number
HKS per share of options  HK$ per share of options
FhRET it o d=] FET B EHE
1 January K—B—H - - - -
Cranted during the year FREH 1.02 20,000,000 - -
At 31 December BR+-A=+—H 1.02 20,000,000 - -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 20,000,000
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in issue of 20,000,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
approximately HK$200,000 and share premium account of
approximately HK$20,200,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 20,000,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 4.73% of the Company's

shares in issue as at that date.

RBEHER ZRARERESSETA
20,000,000 BE R A 18 RATHE © RIFALQF]
RITEREE  BHITEHRITENBERER
BEEE1TERI 20,000,000 B A B) B B AL K
8 S Bg Zx 49200,0008 7T K K& 19 & 8
20,200,000 #7t (K5t #E1TRAD) °

REYBRXIEMLEER A28 A
20,000,00017 f& Bzt 5+ BI TR T BURE AR 1 15 R
T HEREANERADBETRAELN
4.73% °
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32. Commitments 32. k¥

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following NREIEEEE - AEBZ BN

commitments:

2020 2019
HK$ ‘000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Confracted for commitments in respect of BEY*  BELRREZ
the acquisition of property, BETHIERIE
plant and equipment 117,213 139,150
33. Contingent Liabilities 33. 9 R
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided PEREHIR - MR RERP L ESHR BB 2R
for in the financial statements were as follows: =KL
2020 2019
HK$ ‘000 HK$'000
FET F&ET
Bank guarantees given in lieu of property ARBYERERS R AR
rental deposits and utility deposits BEFTIR (M RITIESF 751 816
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34. Notes to the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows

(a)

(b)

(c)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of- (a)
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$48,765,000 (2019
HK$110,596,000) and HK$48,765,000 (2019
HK$110,596,000]), respectively, in respect of lease

arrangements for properties and sfores.

34. &% 5 Bl Ui R R B GE

FR o AEEMYERIEFHEEZEHN
FREEEREEAEIIFREREDH
#48,765000% t( Z & — 1L &
110,596,000 7¢) & 48,765,000 7T
(Z2—N%F 1 110,596,000/ 7T) °

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (h) MEZHELEGEED

Interest-

lease bearing bank

liabilities borrowings

HESR FEBRITER

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

1 January 2019 RN _E—NE—F—H 152,750 427,059

Changes from financing cash flows MERSHREEH (100,645) 111,887

New leases s 110,596 -

Termination of leases ®IFTEE (2,816 -

Interest expense FEBEL 7,901 19,617

Exchange realignment PE R EEEE (1,6706) (383)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ2—NF+ZB=+—H

1 January 2020 R_E"ZTF—HF—H 159,110 558,180

Changes from financing cash flows MERTREEE) (98,600) (108,613)

New leases MEE 48,765 -

Termination of leases #IEFRE (18,018) -

Interest expenses T2 5,987 14,849
Covid-19-related rent concessions R AR Cowd oFrd

from lessors TERINEEE (8,590) -

Exchange realignment FE R AR 4,786 -

At 31 December 2020 A—E_FF+_A=+—H 93,440 464,416

Total cash outflow for leases

(c)

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of

cash flows is as follows:

HERERLEE

SARERERNAERS MH BTN

T

2020 2019

—_— w —_—= E = _j-l.:ﬁz

HKS$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within operating acfivities KSR BN 272,353 469,354
Within financing acfivities BMEEA 98,600 100,645
370,953 569,999




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

W 55 ¥ 2% B Bk ()

31 December 2020 —E_ZF&H+_A=+—H

35. Financial Instruments by Category 35. %Mz e TR =
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RRSHBEEESEEMITANKEEN g
as af the end of the reporting period are as follows: e g
Financial assets EHMEE =

Financial assets at 167
amortised cost
L %
EHEE ot
2020 2019 :;g
—E-FE CTNE ¢l
HK$°000 HK$'000 >
FHET FHTT I
Trade receivables FEUL B 7 BRR 67,060 79,814
Financial assets included in prepayments, FBFEIRIE ~ e K
deposits and other receivables HthEW ez & E 36,168 43,661
Cash and cash equivalents e RIBSZEY) 425,149 200,230
528,377 323,705
Financial liabilities EMAaR
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
gt EZ
ERAR
2020 2019
- Jab -3 ZENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Inferestbearing bank borrowings sHERITER 464,416 558,180
Llease liabilities HEaE 93,440 159,110
Trade payables FE(TE Z 8RR 35,591 52,723
Financial liabiliies included in other B EER B R IE K&
payables and accruals FESTRIBZ SRAE 109,900 116,119

703,347 886,132
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36. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies

The Group's prmcipo\ financial instruments, comprise cash, short term
deposits and inferestbearing bank borrowings. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly

from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks

and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow inferest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value and cash flow interest
rate risks. The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily fo the Group’s bank borrowings with floating

interest rates.

At present, the Group does not intend to hedge ifs exposure to inferest
rafe fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly review the
economic situation and its inferest rate risk profile, and will consider

appropriate hedging measures in future as may be necessary.

At 31 December 2020, the profit before tax of the Group would
have been decreased/increased by approximately HK$2,322,000
(2019: HK$2,791,000]) if the interest rate had been increased/

decreased by 50 basis points with all other variables held constant.

36. 0855 Il B o B RS B BBOR

FERZTETHMTAGRERSE  BHRTERKR

STRIBITER - WETHMTATEZANERE
EEKEXEGRE - AEFFHMARESRE
EREE X RWEZ RN EMEZ R
T ERBIBKEXEHES -

FEBTMITAZTZRAMAFERR « JME
Rk~ EERBRASETRER - EFBEHR L
HEEZEULRBRARZEER > AREREM
LI

P AR
BenENERRAacM TARKRERER
TS EEETIRENR RS o A& B E R A
REERIBEREFNERE o REBPTASF
EEENTHRR » FEEREBIHFES
BHIRITETRAR ©

Bl > AEEESETARZ RN Z K -
ZAT > AEER EIR S BRI R B X R
B TEEEAREERERRBEENY

FRYERE ©

MFZ LT+ B S0ES, > MATA EthERRR
BT RZB-SE+TA=+—B A%
B BTm A R ‘\/i"bﬂﬂ’ﬂ 322 OOO/%TD(
FE—AFE 2,791,000875T) °
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36. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (confinved)
Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sale and purchase fransactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to protect against the volatility associated with
foreign currency transactions and other financial assets and liabilities
created in the ordinary course of business. However, as the Group's
net profit/(loss) is reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a
franslation gain as a result of the RMB appreciation, and vice versa.
The majority of the Group's operating assefs are located in Mainland
China and are denominated in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period fo a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monefary assets

and liabilities).

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

36. 30 %% il B 45 PR H B B BUR ()

I EE L Bz
FEBEEUBTRARBETEERS ° &
ERTEUTESRTERE DA EXFIBRE
ZINER 57 R LR B 2 K BB PR 7S 20
B o AT > ANAEEZ4EF (F518) BT
7 MAREAERHREL WD ° K25
7R o REBMABMPEE EEIINI PEIALE -
WIAANRETIR o

TR HREMEERER A EM P&
REHEFTAENERT » AEEBRENENE
ARBEXFENRGEZS) 2 BRE (B
ERBEERBBNATEZS) -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in profit
AE® before tax
i o RanzEF
(F=R) 8n, GRib)
% HK$'000
FET
2020 . Jek 23
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB AT A RIBEE 5 (68)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB HBATRAREHE (5) 68
2019 “ENE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARKEZ(E 5 (140)

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB B TR AREHE (5) 140
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% 36.Financial Risk Management 36. W 15 R B 45 PR H B By BUSR )
o Objectives and Policies (confinved)
= Credit risk FEREE
o The Group frades only with recognised and creditworthy customers. It FEBERNE R EERFNETRETRS -
= is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit REBEAEBOEER - EAAERUEERLET
> terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, RPMERITELIBEERERR ° It5h > &
170 receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an EETHEE R B ERNTUERSRS - AEEY

T individual basis. Each of the customers has been attached with a BEEPRIUE SR > BHRBEZHNER
z frading limit and any excess of the limit must be approved by the FEEBA 2 REIEHE - AN AEERIEE
i general manager of the operation unit. Under the fight confrol of the B W ERERER ZEEFFENE > W
g credit terms and detailed assessment of the creditworthiness of AEE B 2 SRR B R AR o
S individual customers, the Group's exposure to bad debts is maintained
= at minimal.
3

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BRARBREL D

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure TRETENFEEEFEHRNEEER KR

to credif risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and yearend staging classification as at
31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

REERE ZEERREITEZEN+A
=+—HBEAHEN (RIFEMERBAM
BB ERMARNE NI ER) URELD
HDEE -

2y EESHEHEENRMBE

N EEF+"RA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8R %R
=858 HREBEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
5 1HEER BAMER HIMER Hit5E Wit
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* EWEZ R - - - 71,690 71,690
Financial assefs included in SABRTE ek
prepayments, deposits and HAtREURIERY
other receivables SREE
— Normal** —Eg** 36,168 - - - 36,168
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESZEY)
— Not yet post due — HERBH 425,149 - - - 425,149
461,317 - - 71,690 533,007
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36. 30 %% il B 45 PR H B B BUR ()

36. Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (confinved)

Credit risk (continued) FERKE @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) EARERFELDH (B)
As at 31 December 2019 R-E—-h&+-RA=+—H
12-month
ECls Lifetime ECLs
1218 AT
EEES LHRHEESS
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
51 FRER F2MRE: K] EERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* FEWE SR * - - - 85,425 85,425
Financial assefs included in STATBRE ~ 2K
prepayments, deposits and HAtREURRIERY
other receivables THEE
— Normal** — [EE** 43,661 - - - 43,661
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY
— Nof yet past due — kAL 200,230 - - - 200,230
243,891 = = 85,425 329,316
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * PAEERABBICRE AN E ZRRM
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is = BRNEBHEENE RN M RRMEE2]
disclosed in note 21 fo the financial statements. R o
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, o BATRNRIA  RERAEMBURIEN EME
deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they ENEEERTARPETRERRATME
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial EBYREDEEEREERRIEMMBRS
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. TEF - B SMEENEEERKRES
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assefs is considered to be IRER) ©
"doubtful”.
Liquidity risk MEEEEMR
Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all FHE S A EIS RIS E S U ENFTA 21
contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The Group's > AU FEARIE o zkji%%]zga@mﬁ;_ﬁgﬁz
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy, to monitor SRS EERGIRERERAFE ST
liquidity rafios against risk limits and to maintain a confingency plan K WHRAESESHE BRESEEEHRE
for funding to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet MRS UERERFEESEK o

its liquidity requirement.
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36. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continved)

|_IqUIdI1y risk (continued)

The Group confinued fo enjoy adequate cash position with cash and
cash equivalents amounting to HK$425,149,000 (2019:
HK$200,230,000) as at 31 December 2020. The Group financed its
operations and investment acfivities by internally generated cash flows
and bank borrowings. The maturity profile of the Group's financial
liabiliies as at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

36. 308 %% B 45 PR H B R BUR ()

RBEEER @

AT EE+HB=+—H NEEMSERE
BREREZMBERR  HERESRIRSEEY
425,149,000 7t( = T — N, F:
200,230,000 7T) - XEBBBRNBEEZ
HERRIRTEDR  AEEBE KRGS THRM
B o RREEBEEH  ~AERRESOR
BRATEtE SRaE2iHam T

Within
1 year or Over
on demand 1o 5 years 5 years Total
—F R
HEREER —ELF BRARE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FET FEr FEr
2020 —E-ER
Inferestbearing bank borrowings* St RIRITEE 107,892 374,625 - 482,517
lease liabilities HEaRE 64,772 31,180 2,826 98,778
Trade payables [ETE ZERN 35,591 - - 35,591
Other payables and accruals =G SNENENSRERE! 105,200 4,700 - 109,900
313,455 410,505 2,826 726,786
2019 —E-hE
Inferestbearing bank borrowings S RIRITEE 143,462 469,669 - 613,131
lease liabilities HEaRE 96,722 68,883 4,563 170,168
Trade payables [ETEZERN 52,723 - - 52,723
Other payables and accruals HLAtRE(TRUIR R FE ST RUR 116,119 = = 116,119
409,026 538,552 4,563 052,141

At 31 December 2020, included in inferestbearing bank borrowings are
term loans. The loan agreements contain a repayment on-demand clause
giving the bank the unconditional right to call in the loan at any time and
therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount is
classified as “on demand”. Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors
do not believe that the loans will be called in its entirety within 12 months,
and they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the
maturity dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was made
considering the financial position of the Group, the Group's compliance
with the loan covenants, the lack of events of default, and the fact that the
Group has made all previously scheduled repayments on time. In
accordance with the terms of the Group's loans, the maturity ferms at 31
December 2020 are: HK$97,458,000 payable within one year; and
HK$385,059,000 payable in the second to fifth years, inclusive.

The Group is also exposed to liquidity risk through the granting of
financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 33
fo the financial statements.

* RIBE-EF+"HB=+—8 - stERTER
BETHER - BEXihREaREREREN
&30 > B FER1T KA RERE A R BRI REF|
At > #h EREIEE RS 0 AR EEIRERES
MREREIE) - BEAR LIER > EF WA
ABERHET_EERZHAR - BEERAE
R ERHETRENEPHERE - ItF
SHETHIRBAREENIT IR ~ NEBBENR
LANETER BRENSHURSEED
RS AT A LRIt BNERE B o IRIBAE
BEMER > R_BE_FF+_HA=+—HZ|
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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36. Financial Risk Management 36.

Objectives and Policies (confinved)
Capital management

The Group manages ifs capital to ensure that the Group will be able
fo confinue as a going concern while maximising the refurn to the
owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance where
appropriate. No change was made in the obijectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which includes
bank borrowings and equity attributable to owners of the Company.
Equity attributable to owners of the Company comprises issued share
capital and reserves as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The Company monitors capifal using a gearing ratio, which is total
bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The gearing ratios as af the end of the reporting periods

were as follows:

oA % D g % PR D R e BUR ()

BEFER
FEBEEREANRRAEREREZE
FRSTEZREBBCEBRERELR (WA
B BEAEANEREERK RBE_ZT
—NERZEZETF+A=+—HLEFE
EEEATBR  BRAEFLEEH -

FEBEAEHBOEEEFHREPEERITE
AR REHEE NBILIRIE - ZRBHEE AR
EREEEGESETZEHRAKENDHTR
R f#H o

KRB EBEERBIERRE (BIERITERE
BERUARBER AEGERE) BEEEAR - 0
REMAREERB/ILRAT

2020 2019

—ECEF —Z2—NEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Inferestbearing bank borrowings = ERITE= 464,416 558,180
Equity attributable to owners NABIHER NELER

of the Company

2,488,389 2,349,275

BEE&RIEXR

Gearing ratio E

/

18.7% 23.8%
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37. Statement of Financial Position of

af the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Continued)

37. KR8 u) M BRI

RRBRERRMBARRERAT

2020 2019
ZECIEH —BNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries INNIEVNC PR 949,560 963,995
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TR FRIE 47 193
Cash and cash equivalents B RIESEEY) 211 249
Total current assets MENEELRE 258 442
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Other payables and accruals HAFEARIE R FE ST RIE 2,789 5,176
Net current liabilities mEAERE (2,531) (4,734)
Net assets EEZFE 947,029 959,261
EQUITY L
Share capifal fg s 4,224 4,224
Reserves (Note) M (Hfat) 942,805 955,037
Total equity E3s 947,029 959,261
Note: Kzt :
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RABHEBEENT !
Share
premium Contributed ~ Share option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
RiriEER Ro&ER FRiRTERE R @5t
Nofe HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Myt FEn FErn FErn FéErn Férn
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—nF—F—H 386,512 381,248 = 230,746 998,506
Loss for the year ond fofal EEBERER
comprehensive expense for the year ESlEE - - - (5,452 5452)
18 fincl dividend declared and paid ~ BiRRZA_E—N\E
KRS 14 = = = (29,569 (29,569)
2019 inferim dividend “E-NEHEERE 14 = = = (8,448 (8,448
At 31 December 2019 RZE-n&E+-A=1+—H
and 1 January 2020 RZZEZZE-F—H 386,512 381,248 - 187,277 955,037
Profit for the year and fofal FERNRFE2ANGRE
comprehensive income for the year - - - 428 428
Equityseffled share opfion arangements — RRIEAE BB IRER HE - - 12 - 12
9 final dividend declored ond paid ~ BEIRRIKIZS—NERERE 14 - - - (12,672) (12,672)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZF+-A=1+—H 386,512 381,248 12 175,033 942,805

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the then net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the group
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor and the then existing 10,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid at par. Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium and contributed surplus may be distributed

to the shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

FABNBEREFHAARDREEESERERBA
AINEREEZEBL A AR ETERIIRNR
AEEURZEEARIESUER 10,000,000 &5
BEEOO BTNERRERY - REMSEEA
Bl% 0 B ‘3%1%&5&%%%&%@%5153%%2&/&7}&%
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

38. I8 A n &R

AT EEZMBATBIFENT

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
regisiration and fully paid share/ equity atiributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
B4 AT BRITRERE
%8 RS ES R,/ E s FARIEMEEEE AL TEEH
2020 2019
k- - - S ki3
Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Investment holding
ZH B BNERAR & 10077 REER
Embry (Changzhou) Gaments Lid. PRC/ RMB176,200,000 100 100 Manufacture of ladies’ brassieres,
(“Embry CZ"|** Mainland China  AE#176,200,00075 panties,swimwear and slespwear
ZH5 (BM) REBRAHE R/ HREIARE and property investment
(TZFTB M) ** SIS ERIE
e AR ERRERE
Embry SZ** PRC/ HK$ 11,000,000 100 100 Troding of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
LHS I ** Mainland China 11,000,000 %7t swimwear and sleepwear
FE BT ARE BELMME  E  ATRRER
Embry HK Hong Kong  Ordinary HK$45,000 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
RHEES F#HE  *Nonvoting deferred swimwear and sleepwear and
HK$4,500,000 property investment
Zi@k45,000% 7 BEELHME - AR
* R ERRIER KRR ERE
4,500,000%5%
Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Troding of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
Limited [Embry [Macau] pid 100,000;8F5 & swimwear and sleepwear
Pronto A Vestir, Limitada) BEZEHE - W
ZH15 (BP9 BEARAT KR R B
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$28,000,000 100 100 Monufacture and frading of
Limited ("Embry SD”)* * Mainland China 28,000,000%& 7% lodies’ brassieres, panties,
2% (L) REARY B/ HEIARE swimwear and sleepwear
( ZHIBWR) ** HEREETENE
P9RE ~ KT BEAR
Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 100 Design, research and development
Limited ["Embry SH')** Mainland China 238,000,000 and frading of ladies' brassieres,
25 (L8) BIRAR R HEIARE panties, swimwear and sleepwear
(T Lig)) ** and property investment
HEt TR BEREELN
IR ~ Pt KRB RIERE
Embry Garments Limited BVI USS$1 100 100 Investment holding
HEBEUEE 1%7 RERR
EGL BVI US$472 100 100 Investment holding
EBREUHE 472%TT REER
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38. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

38. R EINE AR &R @

ERBREZEMBATNFENT : (B)

[continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
AL BEITRHE
21 SRS E R fp /& ARG EEE AL TELH
2020 2019
ko2 S
Embry Intenational Limited BVI US$ 100 100 Invesiment holding
ZH B ERARAT HERUEE 1%7% REER
Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Invesiment holding
SEREERAA &% 2% REER
Whisfleblower Limited BVI USS$1 100 100 Holding of frademarks
HERUEE 1%7% REER

The nonvoting deferred shares carry no rights o dividends (other than for any
financial year during which the net profit of Embry HK available for dividend
exceeds HK$ 1,000,000,000,000), no righs fo vote at general meetings and
no rights o receive any surplus in retumn of capital in a windingup in respect of

the first HK$500,000,000,000,000.

**  Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD and Embry SH are registered as wholly-
foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law.

Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company.

The above fable lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assefs of the Group. To give
defails of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

39. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 18 March 2021.

39.

* EREELRI N B EFIRERE (&
15 & E A # kBB MAFE B
1,000,000,000,000 # 7t 89 1F o] A1 EC £F FZ BR
) N RRERAEG LRERISEREFHAE
500,000,000,000,000;# 7z iR [6] & 7K B9 1E fa]
BB ©

i b

x A %@’/ LA T ~ ZF 75 1L R LA
7 L EIIIRIE B L R A RN E R o

FREGLSN > EHLFRA B A RITH AR B
SZ=I

EXRFINERBMBLE » EFBRARFHE
AR EIBREAFEXENENFETEESR
ENEEHD - EFRDR > REHAMWBERF
N BERERERAE

1L 26 S 5 e

IBBREN__E_—F=A+/\HEESSH#
ERARRETIE o



EMBRY HOLDINGS LIMITED
LA T PRI A IR 2 H]



	Cover
	Inside Front Cover
	Contents
	Sales Network
	Financial Highlights
	Corporate Information
	Chairman's Statement
	Management Discussion and  Analysis
	Awards
	Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor's Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Back Cover



